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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.
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Financial Highlights

As at 31 December As at 30 June
2017 2016 2015 2014 2014 2013
R+=-A=+—-H RAA=TH

2t T4 —T-RF —T-QNF —T-pmNF =ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FER FER FER FET FTET

Results £

- Revenue —lhz 50,385 36,379 217,068 25,865 3,792 3,066

- Loss - (39,098)  (39,189) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662)

- Loss per share -BRER

~ Basic (in HK cents) —E& (#1) (0.59) 0.62) (2.07) 0.33) 0.07) 0.09)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E=5) (g=5) (g55)

Financial Position BEMRR

- Non-current assets - ¥RBEE 516,382 457,038 57,275 3,446 - -

- Current assets -RBEE 17,124 25,695 26,486 34,758 4,717 6,717

- Current liabilities -RBaE 51,169 53,765 3,244 1,063 1,105 1,050

- Non-current liabilities -¥RPEE 261,230 206,611 - - - -

- Equity —fEx 221,107 222,357 80,517 37,141 3,612 5,667

Financial Ratios Bt =

- Current assets/Current liabilities ~-RBEE/RHEE 0.3 0.5 8 33 4

- Assets/Equity -BE/Bx 2.4 2.2 1.0 1.0 13 1.2
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RZE—N\F=A=+—H Asat21 March 2018

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

REGIONAL OFFICE IN MACAU

10°, Andar J

Edif. Tong Nam Ah Central Comercio

Nos. 160-206, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao
Macau

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Room 1216, 12th Floor

North Tower, Concordia Plaza

1 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.
Agricultural Bank of China

Hubei Zhijiang Rural Commercial Bank

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place,
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

AMRERE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BMAEEHBER
B P

R E 4 E5160-2065%
REEEERD
108JE

ERATERSRE
BA

NBELRDHEE

R EEE15%

BE R & % b e
12181216 =

EEAERRT
RERTT (F8)BRAT
AR AT
MALTOT B 1 7 4R 1T

3 ]

e BEMS &A1
YEGHD

N

< 3838885

A 51 PES5IE



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIREiM EEH R A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &%}

EEH,

Corporate Information
RZE—A\F=A=+—H Asat21 March 2018

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

The R&H Trust Co. Ltd.

Windward 1

Regatta Office Park PO Box 897

Grand Cayman KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE/WEBSITE

www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk

STOCK CODE ON GEM
8007

INFORMATION AND ENQUIRIES
Investor Relations

Room 1216, 12th Floor

North Tower Concordia Plaza

1 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon

Hong Kong

e-mail: info@globalstgr.com.hk

FEROGBFERE

The R&H Trust Co. Ltd.
Windward 1

Regatta Office Park PO Box 897
Grand Cayman KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

ROBFELERBDIRE

BENEBRBBRAR
B

EFRER183%

& A L221E

EFHE @u

www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk

GEM 19 X 38

8007

ERARENER
"EEBRER

BA

NBELRDHEE

RIS EEE15%

EE R & % b
12181216 =

B FHH : info@globalstgr.com.hk



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BREREMEBER A 7

FEHRSE
Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (RERELRE £ E B R A R) (“Global
Strategic” or the“*Company”), we are pleased to present the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$50 million, compared with approximately HK$36
million in previous year. Loss for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$40 million, compared with loss of
approximately HK$39 million in previous year. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had bank balances and cash amounting to
approximately HK$7 million.

Since 2016, | had provided HK$28.5 million as general working
capital to the Group, as well as to prepare for potential projects.

Apart from facing great challenge in the commodities trading
business and IT business, we have put a lot of effort in the
aspact of energy resource including but not limited to natural gas
pipeline operation and solar energy. The Group continues to face
opportunities and challenges. The Group had made bank borrowings
in subsidiary level in order to ensure development and operation.
The Group will keep assessing each subsidiaries’ operations, apply
expenses management prudently on daily operation look for suitable
and diversified investment opportunities as well as expand the
source of income and generate assured cash flow. The Group shall
adopt prudent but enterprising strategies approach in the future.
We emphasise that all sectors are built up by trustworthy and with
competent expertise, and supported by governments’ policies.

At last, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our directors,
senior management and staff for their support, especially our ex-
director, Ms. Leung Tsz Man. At the same time, we welcome Mr.
Long Wenming, Mr. Chen Hualiang and Mr. Han Leiping who act as
executive directors since January 2018, as well as Mr. Wei Yuetong
who act as Vice-Chairman and executive director since February
2018. We would also like to present our most sincere appreciation
to the shareholders of the Company and business partners for their
ongoing trust and support to Global Strategic.

Weng Lin Lei
Chairman

21 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s audited revenue was approximately HK$50,385,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to approximately
HK$36,379,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016, the increase
in the audited revenue was mainly due to the increase in revenue
from trading of commodities and with gradually grow with the sales
of natural gas and pipeline installation service.

Trading commodities for the Group has continued to face great
challenges in 2017.
HK$41,843,000 in 2017 as compared to approximately
HK$32,293,000 in 2016.

Its revenue has increased to approximately

The Group’s solutions and technical consultation on e-commerce
integration and application customisation business (“IT Solutions
Business”) has also faced great challenges in 2017. Its revenue has
dropped to approximately HK$636,000 in 2017 as compared to
approximately HK$1,428,000 in 2016.

Upon completion of the acquisition (the “Yichang Acquisition”) of
49% equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Ultilization
Co., Ltd.
the Group generated sales of natural gas and pipeline installation
services of approximately HK$7,906,000 in 2017 as compared
to approximately HK$2,658,000 for the period from 24 February
2016 to 31 December 2016. There has been a delay on the
commencement of natural gas supply for certain intended customers

(“Yichang Zhongyou”) which took place in early 2016,

of Yichang Zhongyou and the Company will monitor closely the sales
operation of Yichang Zhongyou and will continue to implement the
development and construction plan of natural gas pipeline in an
efficient manner.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue and
results of commodities trading business, IT Solutions Business and
supplying of natural gas pipeline business before allocation of the
corporate overheads is set out in note 7 “Segment Information” to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The total operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$45,623,000 as compared to approximately
HK$41,850,000 in 2016 in which the Group implemented proper
control of operation expenses for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$5,670,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$39,000), which represented the imputed interest
expense on non-current interest free loan from a related party and
non-controlling shareholders of the Company.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$39,998,000, compared with loss of approximately
HK$39,189,000 for year ended 31 December of 2016.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation is being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank borrowings and external financing. The Group
follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital. The
management will continue to closely monitor the financial position of
the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Amount due to a shareholder

During 2017, Mr. Weng Lin Lei (“Mr. Weng”), the chairman, an
executive Director and a substantial shareholder (as defined in
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company advanced HK$17,500,000,
as compared to HK$11,000,000 in 2016, to the Group, and such
amount was unsecured, interest-free and with a maturity period of
2 years. The advance was used for the Group’s general working
capital purpose during the year. As at 31 December 2017, the
amount due to Mr. Weng was approximately HK$25,355,000 as
compared to approximately HK$9,093,000 in 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 31 December 2017, the amounts due to Hubei Biaodian
Natural Gas Co., Ltd (“Hubei Biaodian”) and its subsidiary and
Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his controlled entities
were approximately HK$134,939,000 and HK$41,765,000
respectively, when comparing approximately HK$118,490,000 and
HK$24,443,000 in 2016 respectively. Hubei Biaodian owns 41% of
Yichang Zhongyou and Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of
Hubei Biaodian.

All non-controlling shareholders and its related parties agreed to fix
the loan repayment date to 31 December 2019.

The advance made by the above non-controlling shareholders of the
Company during the year was used for Yichang Zhongyou’s capital
expenditure purpose.

Bank Borrowings

During the year, the Group bank borrowings was RMB5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$6,000,000).

The assumed bank borrowings upon completion of Yichang
Acquisition of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$17,000,000), which
includes an interest at a variable rate, with an effective interest rate
of 8.48% per annum and has been fully repaid in November 2017.

The new bank borrowings assigned RMB19,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$22,800,000) carry an interest at a variable rate, with an
effective interest rate of 8.01% per annum. As at 31 December
2017, RMB5,000,000 has been partially used up, RMB2,000,000
and RMB3,000,000 of which will be repaid in January 2018 and
November 2018 respectively. The remaining of the unutilised bank
loan has been used up at the beginning of the year of 2018. The
bank borrowings are guaranteed and pledged with several properties
owned by Mr. Xiong, his spouse and certain companies held and
controlled by him.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017,

(@) the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$7,069,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
approximately HK$15,015,000).

(b) the Group’s total borrowings comprised () amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties; (i) amount due to a shareholder of the Company; and
(i) bank borrowings, totalling approximately HK$208,059,000
(as at 31 December 2016: HK$169,126,000).

(c) the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 39% (as at
31 December 2016: 35%). The gearing ratio was calculated as
the Group’s total borrowings divided by total assets.

(d)  the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.3 (as at 31
December 2016: approximately 0.5).

The management will continue to closely monitor the financial
position of the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no pledge of assets (as at
31 December 2016: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017 (as at 31 December 2016: Nil).

PROSPECT

The Group will face challenges in the coming year, including but not
limited to the new business of solar energy and natural gas operation
business, the commodities trading business and IT Solutions
business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has put a lot of effort on the natural gas operation
in Hubei Province, the PRC upon completion of the Yichang
Acquisition. Coal price is still compatible with the natural gas price.
The management will continue to monitor closely the sales operation
and formulate strategies to raise the conversion demand of the
target customers. The Group believes that the demand for natural
gas will expand due to state policies mandating environmental
protection.

Meanwhile, upon the completion of the Shenzhen Energynt in the
beginning of 2018, the Group will try their very best to give impetus
to the solar energy sector. Several photovoltaic projects and
networks have been under negotiation with signed pre-acquisition
agreements and memorandum of understanding. The Group believes
that the sector of solar energy will enhance the income stream.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 7 August 2017, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in
Honest (Macau Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Honest MCQO”) to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Connected Transaction

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6 October
2017, WM ek ORI BR 27 (Dihang Energy (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*, the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement with E/8& BB E ZER
‘A 7] (Shanghai Sheguan International Trading Company Limited*, the
“Anhui Vendor”) and FIIZ s DM ERABR AR (Shenzhen
Energynt Co. Ltd., “Shenzhen Energynt” or the “Target Company”)
(the “Energynt Agreement”), pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed
to acquire the entire equity interests in the Target Company at a
nominal consideration of RMB1.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Target Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the design, construction and investment in solar power generation
projects, the research and development and sales of solar power
generation products and provision of consultancy services.

On 31 October 2017, the Purchaser and the Anhui Vendor entered
into a letter of extension pursuant to which they agreed to extend the
deadline for fulfilment of the conditions as set out in the Energynt
Agreement to a date on or before 30 November 2017 or such later
date that may be agreed by the Purchaser and the Anhui Vendor.

The Anhui Vendor is owned as to 61% by Mr. Weng Lin Lei, who
is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board and is
indirectly interested in approximately 31.88% of issued shares of the
Company.

As at 3 January 2018, all the conditions precedents under the
Agreement have been fulfilled and the completion of the Acquisition
took place on 3 January 2018. Shenzhen Energynt and its
subsidiaries have become indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and the financial results of the Target Company will be
consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Grant of Share Options

On 18 January 2018, the Board announced to resolve to grant
share options (the “Options”) to certain individuals (the “Grantees”)
to subscribe for a total of 62,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.005
each in the share capital of the Company, subject to acceptance
of the Grantees, under the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 30 November 2012 and the payment of HK$1 by each
of the Grantees upon acceptance of the Options.

On 13 February 2018, 5,000,000 share option were exercised at
the price of HK$0.1112, resulting in a total of 5,660,000,000 issued
shares as at 13 February 2018.
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Memorandum of understanding with Shanghai Xietong and
Anhui Zhengsheng

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 February
2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Energynt entered into the non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) with £ /&1 & &
F R 1D B R A ") (Shanghai Xietong Technology Inc.) (“Shanghai
Xietong”) and ZHAEEL ZR AR A8 (Anhui Zhengsheng
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Anhui Zhengsheng”, together
with Shenzhen Energynt and Shanghai Xietong as the “Parties”).
Pursuant to the MOU, the Parties have agreed, in using each of their
own competitive advantage, to establish strategic cooperation in the
aspect of integrated energy management services, so as to promote
the provision of integrated energy management services by the
Company in various industries.

As at the date of this report, no formal agreement has been entered
into among the Parties. Further announcement(s) will be made by the
Company in respect of the MOU with Shanghai Xietong and Anhui
Zhengsheng as and when appropriate.

Pre-acquisition Agreement of Shanghai Xinshu (“PAA of
Shanghai Xinshu”)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6 February
2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Energynt entered into the pre-acquisition agreement in
relation to the possible acquisition with ¥Eit R A #F BRI AR A
7] (Huaibei Shenrong New Energy Technology Co. Ltd.*) (“Huaibei
Shenrong”), E@MRRFEREEBMR QA (Shanghai Xinshu New
Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai Xinshu”) and #d1LfRE
¥ eER AR A A (Huaibei Xindian New Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Huaibei
Xindian”, together with Shenzhen Energynt and Shanghai Xietong as
the “Parties of PAA of Shanghai Xinshu”).

Pursuant to the PAA of Shanghai Xinshu, it is proposed that
Shenzhen Energynt will acquire and Huaibei Shenrong will sell 100%
of the equity interests in Shanghai Xinshu.
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Subject to the completion of the photovoltaic project and network
having been examined and accepted, Shenzhen Energynt and
Huaibei Shenrong will proceed with further negotiation for the
entering into of the formal agreement within 20 business days from
the date of the PAA. Upon completion of the construction of the
photovoltaic project, the Shanghai Xinshu will hold the photovoltaic
project.

As at the date of this report, no formal agreement has been
entered into among the Parties of PAA of Shanghai Xinshu. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company in respect of the
PAA of Shanghai Xinshu as and when appropriate.

Pre-acquisition Agreement of Dezhou Xueyuan (“PAA of
Dezhou Xueyuan”)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13 February
2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Energynt entered into the pre-acquisition agreement in
relation to a possible acquisition with, 3R (Tang Dongming*) (“‘Mr.
Tang”), R (Yu Hui*) (‘Mr. YU"), BN BIRE R EHR B R 2 & (Dezhou
Xueyuan Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd.") (“Dezhou Xueyuan”), &
ZBERKRHERAR AT (Ningjin Xuedian Photovoltaic Technology
Co., Ltd.*) (“ Ningjin Xuedian”), 22 B8 ¥ R B H B R 2 7 (Ningjin
Xueming Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd.*)(“Ningjin Xueming”) and
BB Y IRBH R AR 2 7 (Ningjin Xueren Photovoltaic Technology
Co., Ltd.*) (“Ningjin Xueren”, together with Mr. Tang, Mr. Yu, Dezhou
Xueyuan, Ningjin Xuedian and Ningjin Xueming as the “Parties of PAA
of Dezhou Xueyuan”).

Pursuant to the PAA of Dezhou Xueyuan, it is proposed that
Shenzhen Energynt will acquire and Mr. Tang and Mr. Yu will sell
100% of the equity interests in Dezhou Xueyuan.

Subject to the completion of the photovoltaic project and network
having been examined and accepted, Shenzhen Energynt, Mr. Tang
and Mr. Yu will proceed with further negotiation for the entering into
of the formal agreement within 20 business days.

As at the date of this report, no formal agreement has been
entered into among the Parties of PAA of Dezhou Xueyuan. Further
announcement(s) will be made by the Company in respect of the
PAA of Dezhou Xueyuan as and when appropriate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

FHRINTE B TR RAEERRE  RYLRE
Befr OB AR S B B HE A AR ET201E
EEBRNRFT L ER HRETHE —PER-
FtﬁﬁEZ@“*ﬁ&<tim$%%ﬁ

KARIER o

RAREBH EEMREBHRITOES
WARATZEX B - ARAHRBEERM L
BMREBHBATIEE TR

BMRREEGS ((EMNEREBHR])

BMARARBPR_E—-N\F_A+=BZ
NEFEE AQF2HEEENBQRRE
I Re B EEEERA ([Fix
A R (TREE]D) BINERE KB
BRAR ([EIMNEIR]) - FFEBERAEH
ERAF ([EZMBE])  FZBAKXRKEK
BRAR([Z=REMERA]) RERBLCHAR
FERAG ([EEBC]  ERELEE R
EEINBIR R MEREZMBAR [EIM
TR WET S 7)) FI L B e o

RIBEMBIRER W # 22X LR
R EMELEERREESHERMNEBIRZ
100% A% # -

?iﬁ‘ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘c&Z%i%%ﬁﬂ&?é*“ﬂ‘l?z%
BER EAAERREEBR20EEEBH R
ETJEEW?;’JE% HEITHE—RER -

RAREBH BMNBREBRETOES
WARAZEA g AR A NEERKHRE
JHTB TR TE 58 1o o T3 HE — 0 A

15



16

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RERE M EB G R QD

SPEIEREC IR

Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi, Macau Pataca and United States dollars.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 42 staff members
(2016: 46 staff).
market terms and the performance, qualifications and experience

Remuneration is determined with reference to

of the individual employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries,
performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and
other benefits such as medical scheme and share option scheme.
The Group’s remuneration policies and packages are reviewed by
management on regular basis. The Company has established a
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The Directors’
emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

* The English translation of Chinese names of the entities are included
for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
translation of such Chinese names.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Weng Lin Lei (Chairman)

Mr. Weng Lin Lei (“Mr. Weng”), aged 47, has been the executive
Director since 16 October 2014 and as the Chairman since 3
June 2016. Mr. Weng holds a Bachelor Degree of Urban Planning
from Tongji University, the PRC. He is a director of Hotex Holding
Limited, a company engaged in commodity trading and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Weng has experience in resources
trading industry.

Mr. Wei Yuetong (vice-chairman)

Mr. Wei Yuetong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 57, has been the executive
Director and vice chairman since 5 February 2018. Mr. Wei is the
chairman of Infinite Tencent Group Holdings Limited. He is also the
chairman of the board of directors of Infinite Tencent Media Group
Limited and Universal Television Limited. Mr. Wei is the president
and chief editor of Global News Times Publisher and the executive
council member of Hong Kong Federation of Journalists. Mr. Wei
was the Chairman of the Company and an executive Director from
October 2014 to June 2016 and was the honorary chairman of the
Company from June 2016 to February 2018. He has experience
in the industry of multi-media and public relations in the People’s
Republic of China as well as business investment and development.
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Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 36, has been the
executive Director since 26 July 2017. Mr. Cheung obtained a
bachelor of commerce degree majoring in accounting and finance
from Deakin University Australia in 2007. He is a financial planning
manager of Ftlife Insurance Company Limited since September
2012. He also was the director of Panamax Aktiengesellschaft, a
company listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, from June 2016 to
June 2017. Prior to that, he also was a financial planning manager
at Bank of China from July 2010 to March 2012 and was a financial
consultant at Convoy Financial Services Limited from July 2007 to
October 2009.

Mr. Long Wenming

Mr. Long Wenming (“Mr. Long”), aged 54, has been the executive
Director since 8 January 2018. Mr. Long holds a Bachelor Degree
in Power and Automation Engineering from Tianjin University and
a Masters Degree in Engineering from the Electric Power Research
Institute of the Ministry of Power Industry of the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Long is currently the executive managing director at Hefei
Boshijie Power Technology Co., Ltd.* (&S EE HHFMAR A
7)) . He had previously served as a chief economist of the state grid
department at State Electric Power Corporation* (BIZE /A 7))
and a chief economist and the supervisor of the planning department
of State Power Grid Development Co., Ltd.* (R B & 4 & &
[RA7F]). Mr. Long also served as the supervisor of the planning
department of State Power Grid Development Main Co., Ltd.* (#
EHERENT) . Furthermore, Mr. Long was the general manager
of Anhui Power Electric Development Company* ( Z & H1JRE 1 3
B A ®]) and the deputy director, director, senior engineer and office
supervisor at Anhui Province Electric Power Industry Bureau*® (%
BEENTERB). Mr. Long has vast experience in the design and
operation of power systems, planning of new energy power stations
and power planning of microgrid. He is also experienced in systems
development, application and coordination of power systems and
project development.
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Mr. Chen Hualiang

Mr. Chen Hualiang (“Mr. Chen”), aged 47, has been the executive
Director since 8 January 2018. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor Degree
in Metal Materials Engineering from Jilin University and an Master
of Business Administration Degree from The University of North
Alabama. Mr. Chen had previously served as an investment vice
president at Jiangsu Hengtong Investment Holdings Limited* (T &k
TEREERAER AT ). He was the vice president of operations
of Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chen also
served as the administrative deputy general manager, the foreign
trade headquarters operations deputy general manager and the
merchandising centre director of Ningbo Ruifu Industry Group
Co., Ltd.. Furthermore, he was the general manager of Wenzhou
Weldstone Welding Equipment Co., Ltd. and Changzhou ZAP
Welding Equipment Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen was the chief operating
officer of ECOVACS Electrical Co., Ltd.. He was the general manager
of Soundway Plastic Packaging (Shanghai) Company Limited* ( &% &
BReE (£8)ABMRAF) . Moreover, Mr. Chen was also employed
by Gongli Electronic Industrial (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* ( X EF T ¥ (&
M) BBRAE]) as a manufacturing and project manager. Mr. Chen
has extensive experience in strategic management and investment
management. He is also familiar with the energy industry and is
experienced in the organisation and implementation of the industrial
financial business in energy-related projects investment.
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Mr. Han Leiping

Mr. Han Leiping (“Mr. Han”), aged 37, has been the executive
Director since 8 January 2018. Mr. Han holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Finance from Tianjin Institute of Finance & Economics and a
Masters Degree in Science in the Social Sciences in Accounting and
Management Science from the University of Southampton. He is
currently the executive director of Beijing Zhongdian Ronglian New
Energy Technology Company Limited* (1t 3 & & &t B 1 s R Rl %
A AR]). Mr. Han had previously served as the general manager
WA R
WEABR AR . He was the financial manager of Financial Street

of Beijing Star Harvest Era Investments Limited* (1t &

Holdings Co., Ltd (stock code: 000402), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Han was also the financial and forex
manager of the Bank of Communications (Qingdao branch). Mr.
Han has extensive experience in strategic cooperation and project
management. He is also familiar with the application of energy in
different settings, and is experienced in project development and
platform construction, coordination of new energy power station and
resource integration of microgrid.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee (“Ms. Kwan”), aged 55, has been the independent
non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. With over 18 years
experience in the financial sector, she is a seasoned financial and
investment consultant with strong interpersonal communication
skills. During her time she had been the executive of various
companies. Ms. Kwan is the wealth director of FWD Life Insurance
Company (Bermuda) Limited and the director and chief executive
officer of Roots Management Co. Ltd., an executive wealth
management services company in Hong Kong. Ms. Kwan has
experience in the insurance industry in both Hong Kong and the
PRC. Ms. Kwan is devoted in charity; she is currently the committee
member and vice-president of the examination committee of the
Hong Kong CU Movement Charity Fund.
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Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 37, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
LEUNG holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy group principally engaged in asset
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had
worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8
years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (“Mr. Sun”), aged 50, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Mr. Sun graduated
from Shanghai Medical Instrumentation College in the PRC in 1988.
Mr. Sun is currently the business development director of Tonbright
Finance Leasing Co. Lid. (REREMRE (L) RMHERQF),
a transportation financing and leasing company focusing on the
provision of automobile financing services in the PRC.

Ms. Huang Yu Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun (“Ms. Huang”), aged 59, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 24 August 2015, She
was a financial manager of a branch office of Shanghai Electric
International Economic & Trading Co., Ltd. ( L/ EREREEE
SHBM A7), a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric Group Company
Limited (stock code: 2727, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Ms. Huang obtained a certificate of accounting
profession from Ministry of Finance in the PRC. In 2005, she
graduated from Shanghai TV University (now known as Shanghai
Open University) in the PRC with a professional certificate in
business administration.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel

Mr. Chan Hank Daniel (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary since 7 October 2016. Mr. Chan obtained
his Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Commerce from Macquarie
University, Australia in 2000. He is a practising solicitor and was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2003. He also serves as a
Company Secretary of GT Steel Construction Group Limited (stock
code: 8402, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Leung Tsz Man

Ms. Leung Tsz Man (“Ms. Leung"), aged 41, has been the financial
controller of the Company. Ms. Leung holds a Master of Business
Administration from University of South Australia. She is a member
of each the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. She is also the
financial controller of the Company. She was an executive Director
from 24 August 2015 to 26 July 2017, and as a company secretary
of the Company from 11 September 2015 to 15 April 2016. Ms.
Leung serves as a senior consultant of Hotex Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Weng, an executive Director.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 53.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. The
Company’s reserve available for distribution to its shareholders as
at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$95,383,000
(2016: HK$101,086,000).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Chairman
Mr. Wei Yuetong, vice chairman
(resigned on 3 June 2016, and re-appointed on 5 February 2018)

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (appointed on 26 July 2017)

Mr. Long Wenming (appointed on 8 January 2018)
Mr. Chen Hualiang (appointed on 8 January 2018)
Mr. Han Leiping (appointed on 8 January 2018)
Ms. Leung Tsz Man (resigned on 26 July 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Kwan Sin Yee

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wei Yuetong, Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting, Mr. Long
Wenming, Mr. Chen Hualiang, Mr. Han Leiping, Mr. Leung Oh Man,
Martin and Mr. Sun Zhi Jun will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing on
the date of their respective appointment but is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYIING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYIING SHARES AND

DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

Name of Director Capacity

EEpns 54

Mr. Weng Lin Lei Interest in controlled corporation
PREFRE REGEEER

L: Long position

Note: As at 31 December 2017, 1,802,580,000 shares of the Company
were held by Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Samoa with limited liability and is wholly-owned by
Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as
to 49% of its issued share capital by Hotex Holdings Limited and as
to 51% of its issued share capital by Liang Tan Yi Xing International
Foundation Company Limited (“Liang Tan Yi Xing Foundation”). Hotex
Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Weng Lin Lei. Liang Tan
Yi Xing Foundation is owned as to approximately 38% of its issued
share capital by Mr. Fu Zhan Yong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of GEM Listing
Rules.

BEENESTHRAERARDTH
HEBEIENRG  EERORE
BB RAE (&)

REQB z#HE

TR ARAEZNRDTHRABMFAR
NEED - BERG RESFZFR R

Approximate

Through percentage
controlled of the issued
corporation share capital
HEBITREZ
BRBSEHEE BRBEDL
1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, other than the interests and short
positions of the Directors disclosed above, the following person (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the share or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:

TERRREMALREQTR
DREBRD 2EERAXR

RZZE—+tF+_A=Z+—H BEZELEK
HEIEHIEIBBIEMEARRBIEATHFE ZERL
METReEE B EXH TR ER e RARIN -
THAL (EHFARREERKERTHRAL)
AR A B2 B A7) sk A8 B AR 17 R 7B A oA

A

=

Number of Shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE FHRERNEE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage
beneficially controlled of the issued
Name of shareholder owned corporation Total share capital
FERTRE
RFEAR ERERER ERTEHER B BAES
Global Strategic (Holding) 1,802,580,000 (L) - 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
Group Limited (Note 1)
RERER (FR)EEERAR (Kt3E1)
Global Strategic Fund - 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
Holdings Limited (Note 1)
REEBESERABRAR (Ki3E1)
Hotex Holdings Limited - 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
BEEBERRA (Note 1)
Cika)
Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited - 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
mE—E2BARESEERAF (Note 1)

(HEET)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
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POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Name of shareholder

RRE®
Mr. Fu Zhan Yong
T EXEE

Hong Kong Hao Yue
International Trading Co., Limited
BERMEREHERAA

Mr. Zhang Hai Ping
REFEE

L: Long position

Number of Shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE SHRERNE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage
beneficially controlled of the issued
owned corporation Total share capital
HEBRTRE
EREHRER ERAZTEAEE BE BREDH
- 1,802,580,000 (L) 1,802,580,000 (L) 31.88%
(Note 1)
(PEE1)
1,116,000,000 (L) - 1,116,000,000 (L) 19.73%
(Note 2)
(B5E2)
- 1,116,000,000 (L) 1,116,000,000 (L) 19.73%
(Note 2) (Note 2)
(Kizk2) (Kizk2)
L: &
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

1. Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Samoa with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Global Strategic
Fund Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as to 49% of its issued
share capital by Hotex Holdings Limited and as to 51% of its issued
share capital by Liang Tan Yi Xing Foundation. Hotex Holdings Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Weng Lin Lei. Liang Tan Yi Xing Foundation
is owned as to approximately 38 % of its issued share capital by Mr.
Fu Zhan Yong. Accordingly, each of Global Strategic Fund Holdings
Limited, Hotex Holdings Limited and Liang Tan Yi Xing Foundation are
deemed to be interested in the 1,802,580,000 shares of the Company
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

2. Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited is wholly-owned
by Mr. Zhang Hai Ping.

Save as disclosed above, none of the substantial shareholders or
other (other than Directors and chief executive of the Company)
person had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company according to the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2017.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2017 and there
had been no exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants
or similar rights during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). As at 31 December 2017, 67,000,000
option has been granted by the Company under the Scheme.
Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant
of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv) any person or
entity whose service to the Group or business with the Group
contribute or is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group as may be determined by the Directors from time to
time, to subscribe for shares of the Company. Options granted are
exercisable for a period (up to ten years from the date of grant of the
option) as decided by the Board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal
value of share; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day and (iii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of Shareholders’ approval of the
Scheme. However, the total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period from time to time, without prior approval
obtained from the Company’s shareholders. No option under the
Scheme has been granted by the Company since its adoption.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’ BRETEREESRERERGIE
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR HEZER (&)
DEBENTURES (continuea)

During the year, the Company has granted 67,000,000 share options F R A QAR A ARFEE MEE KD
to the Company’s Directors and employees at the exercise price  67,000,00017 fENHE - 1T{E (8 AT I AL AL
of HK$0.1112 per option share. Details of specific categories of  190.1112/ 7T - A RIE A HE B2 BRI M 15 -
options, please refer to note 27 to the Group’s consolidated financial ~ F2F AR QA R4 A B G RE M #E27 -
statements.

Details of the movements of share options granted, exercised or REEHAEKA-_Z—+F+-_A=+—8B%H
cancelled/lapsed during the review period and outstanding as at 31  KRITER D HZ L TTESEUH /5L B

December 2017 are as follows: EHFENT
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Closing price
At Granted on Exercised Cancelled/ asat immediately
1 January 21 December during Lapsed during 31 December  Exercise period before the
2017 2017 the period the Period 2017 (both dates inclusive) Exercise price date of grant
RZB-tF RZB-tF
R=%-t§ +ZAzt-B tZA=Zt-8  #EH SERLBHAN
-f-8 Rit REATE WERBE/ %X HAfE (BEERWA) TkE L
HKS HKS
BT B
Directors j £
Mr. Weng Lin Lei PERAE - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 21 December 2017 to 0.1112 0.111
21 December 2019
“EAET-ACt-RE
ZE-NETZRZT-R
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2HNEE - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 21 December 2017 to 01112 0111
21 December 2019
ZB-tETZACT-HE
Z2-AE+ZAZt-R
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BERnt - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 21 December 2017 to 01112 0.111
21 December 2019
Z5-t5tzAzt-8%
“E-AET-ACT-R
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun ErErE - 3,000,000 - . 3,000,000 21 December 2017 to 0.1112 0.1
21 December 2019
“EtET-ACt-RE
ZE-NETZRZT-R
Ms. Huang Yu Jun EXELL - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 21 December 2017 to 01112 0.111
21 December 2019
B e <
s
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting FREAE - 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 21 December 2017 to 0.1112 0.111
21 December 2019
I S e =
“E-AETZACT-R
Total Directors B34y - 45,000,000 - - 45,000,000
Employees (3 - 22,000,000 - = 22,000,000 21 December 2017 to 0.1112 0.1
21 December 2019
“E-tET-ACt-RE
ZE-NETZAZT-R
Total Employees (LR - 22,000,000 - - 22,000,000

Total All Categories FERRAH - 67,000,000 - - 67,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continuea)

On 31 December 2017, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme is 233,000,000 shares of
HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company, representing
approximately 4.12% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option before
it can be exercised. There is no consideration for the application
or acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The remaining life
of the Scheme is approximately six years and to be expired on 30
November 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 83.0% of the turnover of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 33.4% of the total
turnover.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 96.9% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for about 86.8% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Details of the subsidiary’s controlling shareholder’s beneficial interest
in the Group are further explained in the section titled “Connected
Transactions” below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions, details of which were
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 20 of GEM
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions — Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement

On 4 January 2017, Yichang Zhongyou and Yichang PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Co., Ltd (“Yichang Kunlun”) entered into the
upstream natural gas sales agreement (the “Upstream Gas Sales
Agreement”) pursuant to which Yichang Kunlun agreed to supply and
Yichang Zhongyou agreed to buy natural gas for the period from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

The transaction amount and annual cap (“Annual Cap”) amount of
such transaction for the year ended 31 December 2017 are about
RMB3,238,000 and RMB20.6 million respectively.

As Yichang Kunlun is owned as to 49% by Hubei Biaodian and
Hubei Biaodian is a substantial shareholder (within the meaning of
GEM Listing Rules) of Yichang Zhongyou holding 41% equity interest
in Yichang Zhongyou, whereas Mr. Xiong, is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Hubei Biaodian and a director of Yichang Zhongyou,
each of Yichang Kunlun and Hubei Biaodian, is connected person
of the Company and the transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) contemplated under the Upstream Gas sales
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under GEM Listing Rules.

Given that: (i) Yichang Kunlun is a connected person of the
Company only at the subsidiary level; (ii) the Board has approved the
Continuing Connected Transactions; and (iii) having considered the
terms of the Upstream Gas sales Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Cap), all the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms
of the Continuing Connected Transactions are fair and reasonable,
the Continuing Connected Transactions are on normal commercial
terms or better and in the interest of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, the Continuing Connected
Transactions (including the Annual Cap) are exempted from the
circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 20.99 of GEM Listing Rules. The continuing
connected transactions are subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of GEM Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement (Continued)

The management has monitored and ensured that (a) the continuing
connected transactions have been conducted in accordance with
the pricing policies or mechanisms (if applicable) under the Upstream
Gas Sales Agreement, as appropriate; and (b) the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure that
continuing connected transactions are so conducted.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under Upstream Gas Sales
Agreement and have confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have issued
their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with GEM Listing Rule 20.54 of GEM
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 28 December 2017, Yichang Zhongyou and Yichang Kunlun
renewed the Upstream Gas Sales Agreement pursuant to which
Yichang Kunlun agreed to supply and Yichang Zhongyou agreed to
purchase natural gas for a term of one year from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2018 with expected total quantity supply not more
than 10 million cubic metres divided by 365 days and the proposed
annual cap is approximately RMB19.5 million.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosures
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in GEM Listing Rules) or their respective
associates had any business or interest which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group nor had any other conflict of
interest with the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors

and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Weng Lin Lei
CHAIRMAN

21 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard”)
as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Required Standard during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules, and
considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board’s composition

EEE(#)
REE-—E—+&E+-—A=+—RAIrEE &

and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board EEMHKNEENEENEE-_T—+F+—
meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder meetings A=+ —BHBUIFELFEEETELE EF%
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the table E& & MBERASHBREHN TK:
below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year
HERE/ ERAERTAETERNY
Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ADERR
Ezegn yHzEe RE#ZES ENEES REAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Chairman PREBEE T 16/16 N/A 2/2 N/A 01
TEm TER
Ms. Leung Tsz Man REITE 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TEm Tam TER
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BIFHTES
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee BfERat 16/16 3/3 2/2 4/4 11
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2R E 16/16 3/3 2/2 4/4 1
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun REERL 16/16 33 2/2 4/4 0/1
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BEENL 16/16 3/3 2/2 4/4 01

N/A: Not applicable

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board held sixteen
(16) Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers
were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages
17 to 21 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report, Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting, Ms.
Kwan Sin Yee, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms.
Huang Yu Jun engaged in business activities in their respective fields
as continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board remain informed and relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin and
Ms. Leung Tsz Man have participated in continuous professional
development programs required by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Directors also participated in other
trainings and professional developments such as attending seminars,
studying reading materials relating to the Group or its industries and
businesses; rules and regulations; business management; or the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

CHAIRMAN

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The non-executive Director of the Company was appointed for a
term of up to about 3 years ending on the date on which the director
shall retire by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Code and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) held
three (3) meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and
approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the
executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive
directors and senior management of the Group. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines set
out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

The remuneration payable to the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 is within the range
of HK$0 to HK$2,000,000.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (cContinued)

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and work performed included reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of
new Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
held four (4) meetings and work performed included reviewing the
Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk management
and internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$950,000 (2016: HK$900,000) and
approximately HK$1,213,000 (2016: HK$1,149,000) respectively.
The non-audit services provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to
the Group were in relation to the review service on taxation, quarter
results, interim result, limited assurance services on continuing
connected transaction, other professional services related to the

Proposed Acquisition.
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company
on a going-concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management systems. It consists, in part, of organisational
arrangements with defined lines of responsibility and delegation of
authority, and comprehensive systems and control procedures in
order to safeguard the investment of the Company’s shareholders
and the Group’s assets at all times.

The Audit Committee performs the duties of risk management and
internal control on behalf of the Board to oversee the management
in the establishment, maintenance and monitoring of effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 and considered the system effective and adequate. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control by considering the reviews performed by the Audit
Committee. The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems have segmented reviewed by an independent professional
party. The Company complies with the code provisions relating to
internal control contained in the Code.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

BMERZE (2)

SN BB S B S R 2 B EHIIR AR ]
HE-Z—+HF+-_A=+—HIEFEZH
EMBRENZBLZEBIRE -

EFECEBTAUGR EBEREZEEY
AEERREENMABEIERG R ET
ma ARERRZBRERARRB ZEE- B
MERAIE (MIERE M) RELBERKE
R - 5% - B BREE - A R E IR T JEHE 8
REEDAEEEBKERZAR-

JE B TR e R BR BE 4

AEEHRFESINAREEMAREZRR
ERREFEECAEEARNB oA L
B UREERRREZERERF  LREERER
RABRERNRERAEENEE -

ERZEERREFERTEAREE KA
EERE AEEERENTE #ENMEER
RO R B B TR Ne B BR PR A AR

EREREQ@FEHNBE_ZT—tHF+ A
=t HLEFEASENRREENMABE
TEGURREBESBERIL D EF
CERELZEEHNTHNERN FHEAKE
R E RN AREENERIEE  AEEH
EREEMAREZERFCEBIERAL
7 FER - AR AEST TR PTE AR R R
BRI T AR -



44

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RERE M EB G R QD
AN S TR A
IEXEREME

Corporate Governance Report
RZT—+tF+-A=+—H AsAt31 December 2017

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is Mr. Chan Hank, Daniel since 15 April
2016. He undertook totally not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at
www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or
in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at Room 1216,
12th Floor, North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees (or
their respective delegates) and external auditors attend the annual
general meeting and are available to answer questions raised
by shareholders. Shareholders may also access the Company’s
corporate website for the Group’s information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.
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Corporate Governance Report
R-ZZTE—+F+=-A=+—H As At 31 December 2017

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available
on both the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements of the Group (the “Financial
Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
financial reporting. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made
are prudent and reasonable.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Financial Statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 46 to page 52.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

BERXHF

REBEZE_T—+tF+_RA=+—HILLFE
BEEQUV THBRARAERXHNEMER
B ANBNMABERNMANERAA A
TR X2 AT 48 Uk B AN 2 R A8 U JEER o

EERRMBBRERNER

EEARREARERBEBGIHMOER
M2 BERBRELRARREEMAF 2R
SEMBEHRER ([MBHRKR]) - EFHENME
RN H AR HAEE 2 KRB F BN
KBS AR L 1 B A 2 5 - Btk
BENEREMRAB T ERE ELZ
R A EBEERAE -

ARBVZHBED RN EE B IS IRK W E
BRHNFOEFE2EBYURBMBRE -

45



46

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RERE M EB G R QD

BB AR S
Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS BREITEIE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RSB EIE AIRIEZEENTTH % 2K
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated RAHANHPEGATERENESRAETE
financial statements of the current period. These matters were HWEB - ZEZEEN A ZEMITRTERL
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial A MBEHRENEAEE REEIE  MANZEE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we T A EHZ S EHEIEMHBINER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREETER AREMTHNETNAEERREESSEE

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

AR EBREEURYE BERRBENREE

Refer to note 19
201519

We identified the impairment of goodwill, intangible  Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
assets and property, plant and equipment arising included:

from Yichang Zhongyou as a key audit matter due ZAZERIITEBERENENEFBEE:

to the fact that Yichang Zhongyou incurred loss of

HK$13,281,000 in the current year. ° Assessing the competence, capabilities and
TZEMOBEREETREENEE BREENUED objectivity of the management’s independent
¥ BELSENRERESBRESEZE HIHR valuer, and verifying the qualifications of the
BEEHPMNAFEEEEIE13,281,0008 7T valuer; discussing the scope of its work with the

management and reviewing its terms of engagement
to determine that there were no matters that affected
its objectivity or imposed scope limitations upon it;

e MEEBEREBVMAEMNBINEN BEEILEER
MU RBREEMNER RERENRE TIEHE
NEMEZEGR NETTRFHEFEHETH TN
S5 H pte pN &6 B R )
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matter

BREBEITEHR

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment (Continued)
BE BEREEURYE BERRKENWREE (&)

Refer to note 19 (Continued)
R F19(4E)

As stated in note 19, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to carry out an
impairment assessment by estimating the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit with reference to
value-in-use calculation, which required significant
judgement on assumptions and inputs adopted in the
underlying cash flows.

MKt 1opa - B E EEECEZER-—XRXBUER
FERETRERN G BRREAEENE AR
PEAEUNFTIKbDeE EFEEHRNEERERESD
FAMMRR R ABEELE XL -

According to the assessment, there was no impairment
on the goodwill and intangible assets arising from the
Group’s prior acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou and
no impairment on property, plant and equipment of
Yichang Zhongyou as at 31 December 2017.

BB H RZE—tF+_A=+—H 1 E&
ERtWEEETMEN s BERETLEERE BEE
ERmZME BB RREBIVERE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREMTHESF NAEERRETEE

Confirming that the approaches it used are in
compliance with the requirement under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”;
HWREMRABN T EZNA T B ERFEICH [EE
VEREERNEOE2Dee

Analysing the underlying cash flows used in the
models to determine whether they are reasonable
and supportable;

DR ERBRLNERANHERRSRE UEERS
ERARELEZAE:

Understanding the projected cash flows, including
the assumptions relating to revenue growth rates
and comparing operating margins against historical
performance; and

TREARSRE (BEAHEREERENERRER) X
HEKENEREBERE &

Involving our internal valuation experts to evaluate
the methodology of the valuation, inputs used for
the cash flow forecast and factors considered in the
discount rates and assess these rates.
ZRAZBMITHRNI HEERSETEEET A
RensBAMBEABUAERREBREEFZEEREHE
WA HZEL X
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tse Ming Fai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2016
—E-RE
Notes HK$’000
k=2 FHT
Revenue g &= 6 36,379
Cost of sales & AR (35,341)
Gross profit E7 1,038
Other income E b g A 38
Other gains and losses H bWz M E5 18 8 (374)
Selling and distribution cost S o SRR AR (13,068)
General and administrative expenses —# R 1T X H (28,369)
Finance costs B 7 AR 9 (39)
Loss before tax FRERIEE (40,774)
Income tax credit FTigHiE e 10 1,585
Loss for the year FREIE 11 (39,189)
Other comprehensive income Hip2mEKRA(ZH)
(expense)
Item that will not be reclassified KK T EEF IR
to profit or loss: HEmsIEE -
Exchange differences arising on B EHREBnE A
translation of financial statements 2IEREEZ
to presentation currency ERER (9,553)
Total comprehensive expense AEERPAZMNRE
for the year (48,742)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AT IR FEAREE:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEF =N (33,224)
Non-controlling interests FE A% b 25 (5,965)
(39,189)
Total comprehensive expense LATATEERFEEZE
for the year attributable to: X 4REE
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (38,083)
Non-controlling interests AR R = (10,659)
(48,742)
Loss per share — basic and diluted EREBE-EAREE
(HK cents) () 14 (0.62)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZE—+F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2017

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—-8H
2016
—E-RF
Notes HK$'000
B 5 FAT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE k& 15 224,270
Prepaid lease payments B HEERIE 16 1,678
Goodwill EES 17 4,328
Intangible assets BVEE 18 226,762
457,038
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 123
Trade and other receivables EUWE 5 & H bR 20 3,727
Prepaid lease payments A E KB 16 33
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable ] g [ 1 (&
([EEH]) 6,797
Bank balances and cash RITEHRLES 21 15,015
25,695
Current Liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables BRNE S REMER 22 36,665
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 17,100
53,765
Net Current Liabilities mEAEFE (28,070)
Total Assets less Current HEEBRBEE
Liabilities 428,968
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
WZZE—tF+_HA=+—H At31 December 2017

As at 31 December

BR+=-—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F&T FHET
Capital and Reserves ERRf#EE
Share capital & 7 26 28,275 28,275
Share premium and reserves f& 17 v B M 79,379 90,097
Equity attributable to owners of KRNFIER ANELEZ
the Company 107,654 118,372
Non-controlling interests FE 2 i A 2 28 113,453 103,985
Total Equity AR 221,107 222,357
Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a shareholder FER AR B R R IR
of the Company 24 25,355 9,093
Amounts due to non-controlling ERN—EMEAR
shareholders of a subsidiary JEERR AR R M H
and its related parties B8 iE 75 ;U8 24 176,704 142,933
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 3,600 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE 25 55,571 54,585
261,230 206,611
482,337 428,968

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 163 were $53BZF163EFEH 2 GATHKHRERER
ZE-N\FZAZt-—HHESSHEER
B WHTIIESREES:

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

WENG LIN LEI CHEUNG TUEN TING
ERE i i =
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

H= —+F+=-_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

LG LN T
Share Non-
Share Capital Share Other  Translation options  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
K& ERGE KiEE EfbfE RERE  BRERR ZitEE Mt FERES ot
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T Tin Fin Fin Thn T Tin Thn Thn TiEn
At 1 January 2016 HoE-AE-A-H 19,800 750 1726% - (60) S (194t 80517 : 80517
Exchange differences arising on KU BRRAERZS
translation of financial statements ERELEIEAER
to presentation currency - - - - (4,859) - - (4,859 (4,694) (9,583)
Loss for the year KEEEER - - - - - - @24 (24 5965 (39189
Loss and total comprehensive expense  KEEERR
for the year 2ERHEE - - - - (6,859 - @328 (808 (10859 (874
Issue of ordinary shares RLak 8,475 - 50,850 - - - - 59,325 - 59,325
Acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou (note 30) WEEE 5 (Fi£30) - - - - - - - - 99,340 99,340
Deemed capital contribution arising from KA RRR L —EH BRI
non-current interest-free loan from a FERRRREBEARR
shareholder of the Company and non- ~ EVG S EHEL 2B
controling shareholders of a subsidiary 34 (FiiF24)
and its related parties (note 24) - - - 16,613 - - - 16,613 15,304 31917
At 31 December 2016 RZF-1~%F
TZA=1-R 28,275 7,540 223,602 16,613 (4,919 - (152,639) 118,372 103,985 222,357
Bxchange differences arising on B BaRAERZS
translation of financial statements SHEECERER
to presentation currency - - - - 4572 - - 4572 5,288 9,860
Loss for he year KEEEE - - - - - - @325 (325 673 (399%)
Proft loss) and total comprehensive TEEER (BB R
income (expense) for the year 2EUA (L) 88 - - - - 4,512 - 33,225) (28,683) (1,489) (30,138)
Recognition of share-based payments UM BEEAFZ
(note 27) (GE7) - - - - - 2,446 - 2,446 - 2,446
Deemed capital contrioution arising from AR ARE R —-EHELFZ
non-current interest-free loan from a 3 BREZRABERRE
shareholder of the Company and non- ~~ FFEIRG S EHEL 7B
controling sharefolders of a subsidiary % (Hf324)
and its related parties (note 24) - - - 15,489 - - - 15,489 10,953 26,442
At 31 December 2017 RZ5—t%
TZA=t-B 28,275 7,540 223,502 32,102 (347) 2,446 (185,864) 107,654 113,453 221,107

The capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued by the Company and the fair value
allocated to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries at the date

of acquisition arisen from a group reorganisation in March 2000.

GRS <

EXRRBE _ETETEF-_AZEEEHEME
TR AEE E B AR A
BEFENBEREEEZCAFEZER-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-ZT—+F+=-A=Z+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2016
—E-RE
Notes HK$’000
k=2 FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REET
Loss before tax BB AT E (40,774)
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation of property, WME - BELFEZ
plant and equipment e 5,792
Amortisation of intangible assets mIvEE#H 8,290
Amortisation of prepaid lease AN E RIS
payments 33
Finance costs B 7 A AR 39
Interest income FEMA 4)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE- HE R
plant and equipment B E 374
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHB AR E -
Share-based payment expense LARR () BER A RAE X -
Operating cash flows before BEECEHEZ
movements in working capital KERERE (26,250)
Decrease in trade and FEUE 5 I H hBR FOR
other receivables 138
Increase in inventories GFE®Em (7
Increase in trade and other payables  JEfTE 5 K& E th BR 238 0 789
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEBRE2RE FHR
ACTIVITIES (25,340)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Acquisition of property, plant and WHEDE BB k&
equipment (82,689)
Interest received 2 FI 2 4
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWE HE K&
plant and equipment RS RIR 255
Net cash outflow arising from WEEEFHEEY
acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou e M FR 30 (54,971)
Cash inflow arising from disposal HE—HNBAREER 8
of a subsidiary WEmA -
Increase in VAT recoverable A Yz (2] 38 (B F5 38 i (711)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZHAARFR
ACTIVITIES (138,112)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
HE-ZT—+F+=-A=Z+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—HLEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of
new ordinary shares

Advance from a shareholder
of the Company

Advances from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and
its related parties

New bank borrowings raised

Repayments of bank borrowings

Repayments of loans from
non-controlling shareholders

Interest paid

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 1 JANUARY

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented
by bank balances and cash

2016
—EF—RF
Notes HK$ 000
g=s FHET
BEE B
BT BRATENRIE
59,325
RAEPRE R
11,000
—EM B R A 2 TR
AR5 I H B8 75 B
88,440
EEEMGRITEER -
BEERTEE (3,480)
EEIFERBRRER
2AIFE (1,506)
BEEEEIREFHE
153,779
ReRBLEHRDFE
(9,673)
R—RA—AZzBE&EkES
= 24,869
INEEEREE) 2 B
(181)
RtZA=+—BZ2H& Rk
ReEHE-
BIRTEHR LIRS 15,015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_ZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

GENERAL

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The immediate holding company is Global Strategic (Holding)
Group Limited since 2 September 2014, which is a private
limited company established in Samoa. The directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider that the ultimate holding
company is Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, which is
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section of
the annual report.

In prior years and up to the acquisition of & & FJf X %X | Fl
AR AT (Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas Utilisation Co.,
Ltd.") (“Yichang Zhongyou”) in February 2016, the Group's
functional currency was Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”). The
Directors had evaluated the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates, including the underlying investment
activities and strategy of the Group after the acquisition of
Yichang Zhongyou in February 2016 and had determined
that the functional currency of the Company changed from
HK$ to Renminbi (“RMB”). The effects of the change of the
functional currency of the Company had been accounted
for prospectively since last year. The consolidated financial
statements were continued to be presented in HK$, which was
considered to be more relevant as the shares of the Company
were listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

*

English name is for identification purpose only.

—REH

RRBREEARAR ([ARF])HE
MEREREFASESEET ARDA
At RERRERAR ERHE
FERBARSABRAR ([BRAHM])
GEM_ETH - IRIREBE (42/%) AR AR A
—E-MFANRZBRERAEEERA
A EAREETKIMABRAR-
ARAEE ([EF])R R RIRBBE
SEERERAF (—HAREBFEMAMKL
ZIVERE) RREERAR EARE
BRI Z FWABR AR o AR B R M
ERMTBEERME U DN FRA
TCEERN—EPRE-

RBAEFEREERZ-ZZE—"FZAK
BEEPHRARIBERAR([E
Bl It ARERNINEEE BB T
([EBExl]) BEFECTEAERELERN
ERNETELERE BEASENR-Z
—ANEZAKBEEF HENARBKRE
EBREE WEBEB AR AIMIEE
EMHBTEEAARE ([ARK]) -
BEARRNEKEEENFEER AT
BEHAEESHEE -SREAMBHRE
BENATEY B REEARE
M EAARARATRNDNEBBE RSN
BRAR ETe

ARTA-MREERAT XHBA
Az EEEHHRM A7 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have given careful consideration to the going
concern of the Group in light of the fact that the Group incurred
a net loss of HK$39,998,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$34,045,000. In addition,
as at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments
amounting to HK$5,693,000 as disclosed in note 32.

As at 31 December 2017, Global Strategic (Holding) Group
Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company,
has agreed to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that
the Group will be able to meet all current obligations as they
fall due in the coming twelve months after the year ended 31
December 2017.

Taking into account the above factors, the Directors are of
the opinion that, together with the internal financial resources
of the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for
its present requirements, that is for at least the next twelve
months commencing from the date of the consolidated
financial statements. Hence, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

BAMBREZENERE

ERAEERBEEZE-_Z—tF+=
A=+ - BLEFEEEBBEITE
39,998,000 BILAMEEE AALERN
B B ERE T B & E 134,045,000
BT BEEETHZEAEEMNRFEL
BB o th AN AN SES2FT W EE - N =
T—+F+_A=+—HB AEEHE
& A EHES,693,0007 7T ©

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H ARQF
ZEEERAGIRIRE (2K & E
ERAFIERAEMASEREHTEREE
 UWEAEBENENEEZE-F—
F+ZRA=+—HIEFERAKRT A
R FTAE B BRI ERE T o

MHREMAE EERA EAAE
EHNBHBER A EEEE RS
EE SR GRA SRR DS
ELORRT EAMBHBR- Bt
BANBRRD RS EE R RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current

year:
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised [Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as disclosed below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

3.

FE R 3R] R ARAEFT & B Bt 3%
EEA(EBMBREE
A1)

RAREE RSN BB BRE A
THES

AEEREMFEERRATIEES
AEAg([FEAGHMAR])BHL
BEMBHRELEIMERT A

B ER wBELEE
FETREFT A
BEGEER BAREHE B
FA125RIEFT AN FRIBEERHE
=
BREMBREER (ERBEYUHR
FA125REFT AN HEA—F
—FEEF=-F
— N
FEN#Z—
i

BTXMEEEIN NEMFEEBZ
FERAMBMELAET AU AEER
ERNMBEFERE BRI IR,
HZEFHRAMBERRABRBELESA
S8,

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 35. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart from
the additional disclosure in note 35, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

3.

FEAH REIEITE B
HEA([BERMBREE
Bl) (#)

EREERETREI AN KELE
]

AEBERENFEARRAZEE
Rl EEABZRERBREHEEER
BEUBHREROEAEFAFERE LD
EAREZEY (BERE LIRS
HE) WHN ZFERTERESCRE

AARBAMFRENER HEA
BEAHCREECES-

BAEMS RFETERBEETIE
B ()\BMERLRENEE ()R
KB A R S CH A SR A TR I A AT SR Y
25 (INEEXZHOTE: (VAT
ENEH: RIS

%8 B B M H R A 2 S AR B P
i35 - BT A ZFERTWBEGX A
EEYERBEBEFENLRER K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—T—

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in

issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs and

issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

interpretations that have been

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

+E+=-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that
the application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

3.

FEAH REIEITE B
HEA([BERMBREE
Bl) (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9, which are relevant to the Group,
are:

° all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other financial assets
are measured at their fair value at subsequent accounting
periods.

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

ERMIREETERBYH
il%j.:.“)i/iﬁ-ﬁﬂ ([BERMBREE
Hl (%)

ERVMBREEAFSR/2HMT A/
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EAEEABNB BV KRS ERNF
FREEREWT:
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1% & 5T B FE 45 SR B IR B S X AN AT
E-FEEMEMEENEESE
HME AT EFE-

PEMEEZREMNS HELE
AHERIEISRE T REELER
EREEAGFERAR BEMEHRE
ERFOR R ERFAREEREEE
A E -FAHEEBEREARTE
BREHRESAMBEREEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—T—

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
anticipate that there will be potential impact on impairment on
the Group’s financial assets upon initial application of HKFRS
9. In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs
and other items that subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the expected
credit loss model was to be applied by the Group, the
accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by
the Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased as
compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on
trade and other receivables and bank balance and cash. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit loss
model would increase the opening accumulated losses at 1

January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

3.

+E+=-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors have assessed the impact on application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the Directors do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue from trading of copper, sales of natural
gas, IT solution services and pipeline installation services.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

3.
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HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and operating cash flows by the Group,
respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$1,173,000 as disclosed
in note 31. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$497,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost
and such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 addresses how to determine the “date of
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income,
when consideration for that item has been paid or received in
advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability (for example
a non-refundable deposit or deferred revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance, the interpretation requires an entity to
determine the date of transaction for each payment or receipt
of advance consideration.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration (Continued)

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 will have a material impact on foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE—T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s amounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combination

Acquisition of business is accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal (or any of the cash-
generating unit within group of cash-generating units in which
the Group monitors goodwill).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and titles have passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract and is
recognised when services are provided. Installation fees are
recognised by reference to the proportion of the total cost of
the provision of the pipeline installation service.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land

held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire property
is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

BEESHE (#)

BERA

W ERIEEREREE (HUA
REFHELDAIFEERERENHENE
E)EERBLHENEERATDNEZESE
ENRN BERFEEAR LAER
BREMBRIHEERL-

PrAEEMEERATIRNEEENIER
REB AR -

B ARAE R R A

ERHEFRRBHGE 2 HANEE LR
HRBEEERZTHEHRARKER/X
4o

HHEEEA

RHE B R A Y% E B IR AR TR
BF XN ZRBERENERER A
RHRERMNOER /A -

BEZEAREN (PIMTERFE F
REBRE) TIRBER N 2R E&E
REIE

81



82

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RERE M EB G R L

n\/-_l_\

IR ERARMEE ()

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &%}

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

+E+=-HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

+E+=-HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than properties under construction) less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—+F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives is
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

+E+=-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to 180 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

BEESHE (#)

$RMIAE(£)
THEERERTA
EERRT2EEAES TARES

%’J;z%ﬁﬁZf‘?%fWALA&%ﬂféL i
TEAZERPBERERARERER

o

TA

@\\

o T RERERRAEREELRR
HFfERER R 2 EAA4-
AEBEBTZEETARESKE (H
BRERETRA) AlK-

EC RS

ERMEXDFESRABENE RN
R ERREESIFNERANTE-&E
BRAESBAEFARRENK (BEE
RERNEBREONAACNHE W
ERRRE XA REMREXIT
B)EEeRMABENEHFRK (MHE
R EREEERTREGRERRDN
FREFENF X -

B FSIRER R ROERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a shareholder of the Company,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

+E+=-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

BEESHE (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. T HBREREZNEERR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period,or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

FE & PR P FEAPT AR 55 B & 5t BUR B
ERARTRTEEMEEREHTENE
=N A ERRREEEDLHE - SRR
Re bt REBRRIDENBELRK
KASBEENEMEARFEL BERER
AREEZFhAFEER-

B LEEERRERFEELET AR
Ao BRHART BRI @R EHERT B
(BETEUZYRELTE) AR 1E
FTHIR SRR EIM (FIERTH & AT KR
KM ELERE)ER -

CEROLESES:VES -2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

Determining whether intangible assets and goodwill are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of
the intangible assets and the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which results in downward revision
of future cash, a material impairment loss/further impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of intangible assets is HK$228,902,000 (without recognition
of impairment) (2016: HK$226,762,000, without recognition
of impairment), while the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$4,556,000 (without recognition of impairment) (2016:
HK$4,328,000, without recognition of impairment). Details
of the estimation of recoverable amount of the related cash-
generating unit determined by value-in-use calculation are

disclosed in note 19.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, the management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of property,
plant and equipment according to the experiences over the
usage of them and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. If the actual useful lives of them are less than the
original estimated useful lives due to changes in commercial
and technological environment, such difference will impact
the depreciation charge for the remaining useful life. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment was HK$281,191,000 (2016: HK$224,270,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-_T—+HF+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold in respect of its commodity trading
business, natural gas sales business and services rendered
in establishing and providing secure electronic payment
processing platform and pipeline installation.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

iy #8

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

WHENAREIEERRAREESR
EEMARRKIRRREZEE
THREEF & REELZKE AR

BHe

Bzl EREEE -

REERFARZEEZDIHTAOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Sales of goods HEEm
Trading of copper B =il 41,843 32,293
Sales of natural gas HERXAR 5,718 1,421
47,561 33,714

Rendering of services 2B 7%
IT solution services BB EBRRT ER 636 1,428
Pipeline installation services BEETERG 2,188 1,237
2,824 2,665
Total revenue Rl g 50,385 36,379
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conforming to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company, who are
identified as the chief operating decision makers (“CODM”) for
the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. The Group has three (2016: three) operating
and reportable segments.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

° Trading of copper — including income from trading of
copper

o IT solution services - including services rendered in
establishing and providing secure electronic payment
processing platform and the services rendered in
establishing the mobile application platform for
customer’s design of garments

° Natural gas operations — including investment in natural
gas projects, sales of natural gas, natural gas cooking
appliance and accessories and pipeline installation.

T EER

REDBDHERBREBMBREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+=-B=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

REVENUE W 35

External and total revenue HMAERBY S

Segment loss NEER

Other income and other gains H i A R H ks 85 48
and losses

General and administrative expenses —f& R 1TH X

Loss before tax BB EE

HEER (&)
R VXS |

AT R HEREED BH AR EER
BREEXBOREREEFELOHD:

BE-Z—+tHF+-A=1+—HLEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2EER#)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) PHBBEREE (EF)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_ZT—R"FTA=1T—BHLFE
Trading [T solution Natural gas
of copper services operations Total
BHRHR
BRI BRAAERE AAREH A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET THT
REVENUE g
External and total revenue HIMEE REBK R 32,293 1,428 2,658 36,379
Segment loss ABEER (104) (2,254) (13,316) (15,674)
Other income and other gains HEt AR Atz R EE
and losses (339)
General and administrative expenses —#& R1TH X (24,761)

Loss before tax bR BB 18 (40,774)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 4. Segment loss represent the loss incurred
from each segment without allocation of headquarter income
and expenses (including other income, other gains and losses
and general and administrative expenses). This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by operating and reportable segment:

Segment assets

THEER (&)
PEMHTEE (F)

e R ARG SR 2GR BUR E M T4
PrfiAsEe st BRAR - D B EEE
BEOREEZER YARDREAIRBKA
R (BREEMYA - iR REB
BR—BETEIH) WIHRERD
FERRBFERNIREBZELERKERE
e A

THEERRE

AT REEERAIRESREAREE
ENAEELH DN

THEEE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZTE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Trading of copper B =il 5,909 3,184
IT solution services BB R R RS 5,656 8,162
Natural gas operations RARES 512,266 447,985
Total segment assets DIEEERE 523,831 459,331
Bank balances and cash WITHEB IR S 935 10,611
Other receivables JiE LT L b BR 3R 1,337 2,420
Property, plant and equipment M BB kEE 5,883 8,851
Intangible assets mEE 1,520 1,520
Consolidated assets LEEE 533,506 482,733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—+HF+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

7.

THEER (&)

THEERRE (&)

TEEE

As at 31 December

B+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TET FABT
Trading of copper EEM# 8 7
IT solution services BB R R T RIRTE 149 225
Natural gas operations RANRET 285,241 239,767
Total segment liabilities DEaERRE 285,398 239,999
Other payables FEST E A BR 3R 1,646 11,284

Amount due to a shareholder JEAT AR RIREFRIA

of the Company 25,355 9,093
Consolidated liabilities mAEAafE 312,399 260,376

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
bank balances and cash, other receivables, property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets used and held
by the headquarter; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than other payables and amount due to a shareholder of
the Company liable for by the headquarter.

REERNBRAMR OB ZEIREE

R

MBEEORIRERENE
RITHEBRLIRES  BREAMERR
M BB N R R AR A &
REZEBVEERIN: &

FIEREORIRERENE
A8 ED P PR A EL AR R R A AR
DA R RIARR SN -



n‘/T\

BA SR AR At

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE M EBEFR AT

(%)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BHE-T—

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

+E+=-HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. DEER (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

Other segment information Hih 2 EEHR
Trading IT solution  Natural gas
of copper services  operations Unallocated Consolidated
MR
BEE BAFRRYE RARER APE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER TAET
2017 —E—tF
Amounts included in the measure of ~ WA ENBEEZ L8
segment loss:
Depreciation e - 84 4,278 2,003 6,365
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESH - 1,800 7,678 - 9,478
Release of prepaid lease payments AR AESIEE B - - 33 - 33
2016 —E-R
Amounts included in the measure of ~ MAGTENBEEZ L8
segment loss:
Depreciation e - 56 3,556 2,180 5,792
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEHH - 1,800 6,490 - 8,290
Release of prepaid lease payments BNHERERE - - 33 - 33
Geographical information ih 2 & R
All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location BREFEMSIZE EME S D 2 &R

of customers or by location of assets are within the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”), including Hong Kong and

Macau.

SEMAWRGE RIFRBEEDUN T E
ARKME ([FE]) BEEEIR

e
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER (&)

Information about major customers

The following table sets out the revenue from customers

ERTIEREFZEHN

TEREINFABRAREAHETEI0%

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group during the LA EZ PR R 2 2 o
year.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=+—BLtEE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT FAT
Customer A Z2EA 16,829 -
Customer B =FB 9,226 -
Customer C ®FC 6,436 4,678
Customer D =2FED - 27,615
32,491 32,293
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Htt s R ER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+—HBL&EE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEME AR WE ()
(Note) 2,000 -

Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HERZHERE

plant and equipment (1,293) (874)
707 (374)

Note: On 7 August 2017, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Honest
(Macau Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Honest MCQO”) for a cash
consideration of HK$2,000,000. Honest MCO did not have any
assets and liabilities on the date of disposal, and such disposal
was completed on 7 August 2017, resulting in a gain on disposal
of a subsidiary of HK$2,000,000 credited to profit or loss.

The related consideration of HK$2,000,000 has been received by
the Group in the current year.

GEE

R-ZZ—+tFNAtR REEHE
—BBUE=ZFRILROHEZER
FHOBU ALEERENESNAE
2,000,000/ 7o iH & R = (B P
BEEEERSE) BRAR ([EHRM
BEEEERS]) 22 EMRE - N E
HE - EURMIBE TSRS &
MEAERAE BZBHEER-Z
—tFNALARR BEHE
b8 2 /) 2 e z£2,000,0007 o ET A

B

AEBERAFERRAENKE
2,000,000/ L. ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+=-B=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

9. FINANCE COSTS

9. BMHERAK

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-BLEE

Interest on bank borrowings
Imputed interest on loan from non-
controlling shareholders and its

related parties

Less: amounts capitalised in
construction in progress

The weighted average capitalisation rate was 9.83% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016 : 9.72%).

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
THET
RITEEFE 1,506
FEIR PRI R K HREE
REERZHER S
7,794
9,300
BEBRIRAPER LS5
(9,261)
39

BE-Z—+tF+-A=+—ALF
B2 m@EFHERER.83% (ZF
—NEF19.72% ) °

10. FRIEHER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLLEE

Current tax:
Hong Kong
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Deferred tax credit (note 25):

2016
—ZE—RF
HK$’000
FET

BV EAF% 18 -
BE 38
PR EMER -
38
EERIEE S (MI5E25) - (1,623)

(1,585)



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RERE M ERBER A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #f

e UBHRRmE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 10. FREBLIE R (#)
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BEPEGEMEBRE(IEERE
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax BEAIDRGERMGHZERMAE - F
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2016: 25%). The tax rate BEHERARNRER25% (ZF—
of Hong Kong Profits tax in respect of the HK subsidiaries is F:26%) BEHBEMNBRRNES
16.5% (2016: 16.5%). FEHRMEAR16.5% (ZF—XNF:
16.5%) °
No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been FR A R A 4F [5 AP B BT B 8 ) 3 4% P AR AR
made in the consolidated financial statements, since the PRC i ) B EERNAR A BT SRR R AR
subsidiaries had no assessable profits in both years. B EMEHEE-
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEZEHAESHHENEGaERR
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and Hit 2 amR 2R B R EE R
other comprehensive income as follows: T~
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Loss before tax BRI 1R (41,917) (40,774)
Tax credit at PRC Enterprise Income £ B 1> 2 AT 15 £ 25%
Tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) (ZZT—RF:25%)
AR ZHIEE R (10,479) (10,194)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR IS H 2 MG 2
for tax purposes 3,080 450
Tax effect of income not taxable RRMA T IFHE
for tax purposes (501) (42)
Tax effect of tax losses/deductible KREERTIAEE, W 1Y
temporary difference not recognised P25 % 7 B & 6,107 7,618
Utilisation of tax losses BABTRERZMIBEEIRE
previously not recognised (127) -
Effect of different tax rates of O E M B]E RE [ AR
subsidiaries operating MBRARZTRAME 22
in other jurisdictions - (29)
Others Hit 1 612
Income tax credit for the year KEEZHERER (1,919) (1,585)
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F 3k

1. FRAEIE

Loss for the year has been arrived at
after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
— included in general and
administrative expenses
— included in selling and
distribution cost

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in selling and
distribution cost)

Release of prepaid lease payments
(included in general and
administrative expenses)

Total depreciation and amortisation

Staff cost (including directors)

— Salaries, allowance and
other benefits

— Contribution to retirement
benefit schemes

— Share-based payment expenses

Auditor’s remuneration

Minimum lease payments in
respect of rented premises

Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (included
in other gains and losses)

and after crediting:

Interest income

FABRCKMNE:
ME- BB MRENE
—FFA—RRITERX

—FTAHE R HAA

BVEESE
(FTABHE R SR A)

T8 M B R0A [
(FEA—MRRITEH)
TERBHBE

BIRA (BRES)
—IE HehEMERN

— R RAR A B K

— AR D R ETE A F X

2% B BN &
PREEMEZREHEENR

BRABAX ZFEKA

HEME BEEREBZER

(FIAEAM Yz RER)

KkEFA:

B HA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FET

2,800

2,992

5,792

8,290

33

14,115

12,081

86

12,167

971

3,867

33,295

374
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+=-B=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. EE  THHEBREEMS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
During the year, included in staff costs of HK$10,349,000 F R & B K A10,349,0008 70 (= F
(2016: HK$12,167,000), emoluments paid to Directors were — N 12,167,000/ T) BIE D N E
amounted to HK$4,031,000 (2016: HK$7,395,000), details of E B £4,081,0008 T (=& — /N F:
which are set out below: 7,395,000/ 70)  FFIBEHN T X :
Directors’ emoluments EEMS
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—+tHF+=-A=+—-HLEE

Name of executive directors  H1TEEH 2 (Hiie)
(Note )
Weng Lin Lei (‘Mr. Weng") ~ $2% ([§%4£])
Cheung Tuen Ting (Note d) 3R = (Mizd)
Leung Tsz Man (Note c) 23 (MizEc)

Name of independent BUFHTESHA
non-executive directors (Mistg)
(Note g)
Leung Oh Man, Martin 2
Kwan Sin Yee AR
Sun Zhi Jun HEE

Huang Yu Jun HEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016

12. EE - THHEBKEEMS
()

ExMeE (&)

BE_ZT—R"FT_A=+—HLHFE

Performance Equity- Retirement
Salaries related settled benefits Total
and other incentive  share option scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments expense  contributions  emoluments
VAR HE
Fak HRH BEN RIREH
e Hip sl HEEE BRERX HEMRT EEMess
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TERT TERT FTET TET
(Note a)
(Mizta)
Name of executive directors  H1TEEH# % (Fiste)
(Note e)
Weng Lin Lei Eo)k - 1,250 - - - 1,250
Leung Tsz Man (Note c) 27X (HizEe) - 1,450 - - 18 1,468
Wei Yue Tong (Note b) BAZE (Mb) - 1,872 - - - 1,872
Fan Wei Guo (Note b) té’:l (FiED) - 697 - - - 697
Zheng Jian Peng (Note b) 5 (Pt - 808 - - 9 817
Name of non-executive FHTESHA (M)
directors (Note f)
Zheng Zhu Ping (Note b) HHRT (Mib) - 692 - - 9 701
Name of independent BUERTESHE
non-executive directors (MsEg)
(Note g)
Chiu Wai Piu (Note b) BEIE (M) 70 - - - - 70
Leung Oh Man, Martin RHX 130 - - - - 130
Kwan Sin Yee BiE5% 130 - - - - 130
Sun Zhi Jun BEE 130 - - - - 130
Huang Yu Jun HEEE 130 - - - - 130
590 6,769 - - 36 7,395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

There was no payment of the performance related incentive
payments for both years.

Mr. Wei Yue Tong, Mr. Fan Wei Guo, Mr. Zheng Jian Peng and
Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping were resigned on 3 June 2016, while Mr.
Chiu Wai Piu was resigned on 16 June 2016.

Ms. Leung Tsz Man was appointed on 24 August 2015 and
resigned on 26 July 2017.

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting was appointed on 26 July 2017.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s emoluments shown above were for

the services as director of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

12. EE - THHEBKEEMS
()

EEHS (4)
W

(@ MEFEHRLNEAXRABBES -

(o) BMAESLE CHBELL HEEBETE
REBRFRER-_ZT-RFRA=R
BHE MESBREENR-ZT—RFRA
TREBHME

0 BRFIZLTHRZ-ZZ—RFNAZTHE
AEZE YR -_F—tFLtA-+R
HBHE -

@) FKHFEERZZT—LFLAZ+RN
AEEE-

() ALHMBHTESZHESNEEHY
BEHARB RN EEEIEEHIREM
ZBR7 -

()  ALMBZERTEEZFH D E B
HEFERARALEWNBRARES
ZBR7 -

(@ ALHEBIFEATEEZHFENE
EHHREERARREETZRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2016: five directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2016: nil)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

13.

EE&EEHAL

AEERFANIERSHEEREM
FEF (T RF HREFR) KF
ZHEFEEN EXHE12 c FRER
=R (ZE-RF B)FARAESH
RETRABNRSEHA TFBN
T

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ+-—A=+—HBL=EE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

(Note)

(P E)

Salaries, allowances and TE HehEYET

benefits in kind 2,865 -
Performance related bonuses KIBAEREIEAL - -
Equity-settled share option expense  VARRIEAEMBERER 108 -
Retirement benefits BRIREF 30 -

3,003 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 13.

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Group whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as followings:

EEREREEEHEALT (&)

FARAEZTAZRHTHRABNRSH
BN 3 BN G2 DA T [

2017 2016

—E—tf —E—XF

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEA™ EB A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (Note) Z %1,000,0007 7T (k) 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £1,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t £2,000,0007%8 7T 1 -
3 —

During the year, certain non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group under the share option scheme of
the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in
note 27 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Note: This includes the remuneration of one staff after resigning as
the executive director during the year ended 31 December
2017.

FR - ETHEERIRRTHRARN
e MiESREAQ A BRETS
18 5 [7) AN S [ 12 ) AR 765 1 2 R BB B
Bo-BREMAEFBINAKEREH
¥R R M iE27 -

i RBE-FT—+F+-A=+—AL
FE REEOE—SRINTES
BIHHM-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows:

14. BREE

RRABHREANEBEERERN B ERE

TIRBIAT BB & -

ERHEBUBERTENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-BA=+—HBL&EE

2017 2016
—ZE—tF ZTE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to RAESREAREEEE
owners of the Company for the NARIER AFEM
purpose of basic and diluted loss AREEEAE
per share (33,225) (83,224)
’000 ‘000
T F &
Weighted average number of A EERERNREEEE 2
ordinary shares for the purpose @A hniE &
of basic and diluted loss per share 5,655,000 5,377,131

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options, as this would result in
the decrease in the loss per share. Diluted loss per share was
the same as basic loss per share as there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

AEEE_T-tEF+_-_A=t—HL
FENEFERARBRARAMBAE
SNERERETE REESEHE
REERL RBE_T—XF+_-A
ST-HLEFE ShEFERESRK
EXBEER BRARME2IFEL
BEECDBRTEBER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
H= —+F+-_A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % -BERRKRE

Computer Furniture
system and and  Leasehold Motor Pipeline and Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles  equipment in progress Total
EHZAAR
gr ®E GAR%EE HERE RE  EERRK EEIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAL TET FAT TR TR TR TR
CosT RA&
At 1 January 2016 WZE-7"4%-A-H 3,228 653 297 2,675 7,027 - - 13,875
Acquired on acquisition of Yichang ~ WEE S mEEA ( HE30)

Zhongyou (note 30) 6,184 - 880 - 603 58,492 62,482 128,641
Additions HE - 166 111 51 - 710 99,412 100,450
Transfers EE - - - - - 2,100 (2,100) -
Disposals LE - @) 87) (518) (320) - - (928)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ (547) ) (63) (143) (68) (8,073 (6,797) (10,696)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-AETZA=1-8 8,860 811 1,138 2,065 7,242 58,229 152,997 231,342
Additions NE 416 283 413 - 121 51,454 52,687
Transfers EH - - - 1,183 - 153,025 (154,208) -
Disposals HE - (72) (239) (1,999) - - - (2,310)
Exchange adjustments B 467 33 76 84 28 3,006 8,465 12,249
At 31 December 2017 “F—+t%+-fA=1-H 9,743 1,055 1,388 1,333 7,270 214,471 58,708 293,968
DEPRECIATION il |
At 1 January 2016 NZE-7"4%-A-H 67 119 37 283 1,315 - - 1,821
Provided for the year FNEE 314 152 203 466 1,665 2,992 - 5792
Eliminated on disposals HEBRE - (1) (26) (155) (117) - - (299)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ (19) (1) (13) (4 (48) (137) - (242)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+ZA=1-H 362 269 201 570 2,815 2,855 - 7,072
Provided for the year FREE 346 203 298 340 1,557 3,621 - 6,365
Eliminated on disposals HERME - (43) (104) (870) - - - (1,017)
Exchange adjustments ERE% 27 17 17 29 19 248 - 357
At 31 December 2017 ZE-tE+tZA=1-8 785 446 412 69 4,391 6,724 - 12,777
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+E+-A=1-8 9,008 609 976 1,264 2,879 207,747 58,708 281,191
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"ETZA=1+-8 8,498 542 937 1,495 4,427 55,374 162,997 224,270
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the following estimated useful lives after taking into
account the residual values as follows:

ME - BERSE 2

UEWE BERRERE KRERT
oM YR MR EER N NMEE
AERFHRRERENE:

Buildings 2.3% - 19% Bgx 2.3% - 19%
Computer system and equipment 20% — 33'/:% ESN S 20% - 33'/s%
Furniture and fixtures 9.5% — 33'4% R REE 9.5% — 33'4%
Leasehold improvements 20% HEEE 20%
Motor vehicles 9.5% - 23.8% T 9.5% - 23.8%
Pipeline and equipment 4.8% - 9.5% EBRRE 4.8% - 9.5%
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. N HEERIE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  ARE BN MO T
Current — assets mE B E 35 33
Non-current — assets ERE-EE 1,733 1,678

1,768 1,711
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$’000
FAET
COST P
At 1 January 2016 R_ZE—-XF—HA—H -
Arising on acquisition of W H & mrE 4+ (KEE30)

Yichang Zhongyou (note 30) 4,556
Exchange adjustment b 5 F & (228)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+ZHA=+—H 4,328
Exchange adjustment & A 228
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+tF+_A=+—H 4,556
CARRYING VALUES BREIE
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+ZA=+—H 4,556
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-RF+ZA=+—H 4,328
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are EAMEREAHANF BRI E19R 5

disclosed in note 19. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & E
Natural gas
Cost of supply
mobile exclusive
Car license application rights Total
REBER AR
B BRAKE  BRUEEER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)

GEZY (MiiEh) (MisEc)

COST 7%
At 1January 2016 R-ZE-—X"F—A—H 1,520 9,000 - 10,520
Acquired on acquisition of Yichang ~ WEE S+ HEEA

Zhongyou (note 30) (F7£30) - - 236,400 236,400
Exchange adjustments R R - - (11,820) (11,820)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F+ZA=1+—H 1,520 9,000 224,580 235,100
Exchange adjustments BHAE - - 11,820 11,820
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1+—H 1,520 9,000 236,400 246,920
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—"5¥—A—H - 300 - 300
Charge for the year FRHRK - 1,800 6,490 8,290
Exchange adjustments B X A% - - (252) (252)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F+=ZA=1+—H - 2,100 6,238 8,338
Charge for the year FAMEK - 1,800 7,678 0,478
Exchange adjustments BHAE - - 202 202
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+&+-A=+—H - 3,900 14,118 18,018
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1+—H 1,520 5,100 220 282 228,902

At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-A=+—H 1,520 6,900 218,342 226,762
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—+HF+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Car license represented the China/Hong Kong cross border car
license acquired from an independent third party. The Directors
are of the opinion that the car license has an indefinite useful life
as the car license is transferrable and able to renew on an annual
basis with minimal cost and hence no amortisation is provided.
At the end of the reporting period, the car license is carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The mobile application represents the web-based and mobile
application platform for customer’s design of garments. The
mobile application has finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 5 years.

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the Group’s
acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou completed on 24 February
2016 and is amortised over the remaining years of the
contractual period of 30 years till the years ranging from 2041 to
2044.

W

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

18. BILEE (#)

ERERAMBYE=TREZPEE
RER-EERR ENEMRITEREL
BEHARIR A G FEE  EAEAF
HIRER - R I AR - N IRE
HATEAERS - BRI ORI AR B 1R R
FHREEED AR -

mBEAERNEANEPRFREZ
BEEADERTE - RPEMIEXA
BERAEREFRTUERERDF
-

RKARBRUEEREENAEERZ
T-RFAZtTHBEERKEES
il TREZE TN —FE T
FIF30F Z FItg & LI HAN Y -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note
17 has been allocated to one individual cash-generating unit,
i.e. the subsidiary Yichang Zhongyou. The carrying amount
of goodwill (without impairment losses recognised) as at 31
December 2017 allocated to the unit are as follows:

19. BERERNR

SBEAAM S ME17HEBED D
EE—EAE-HReELEM BMNBER
RAIEERm NEEZBEMZHE (I
AERBREEFER) RN _T—LtF+_H
=t BH®OREEMNT:

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FEIT
Yichang Zhongyou — natural gas HEFRH-RARER
operations 4,556 4,328

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of
16.67%. Yichang Zhongyou’s cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Zhongyou operates. Other
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Zhongyou'’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that 2%
decrease in net profit margin and 1% increase in discount rate
would be the reasonably possible change in respect of the
sensitivity analysis of the value-in-use calculation of the cash-
generating unit. Where net profit margin decreased by 2% or
the discount rate increased by 1%, no impairment loss would
be recognised on goodwill and intangible assets respectively.

ZEMHNARE SR REREENE
TEEE At B ERAEREEE
HENDFRMBREFELNRSRE
FERAIR16.67%MIMIRE - EEHMN T
FHE IR SR E IR FA3%H 12 F 18
REHRME - ZIBRETIERBRAT
ERREN Y ABBEET HELHN
ERBETENFORBERK -ERE
Bt ETAMRANEMERR BRI R
BemA/ it (BEEEHERLE
M) B fhEt bR IERE ST IHA
BERREEEBHMSERNEHM
FH-BEEEMRE AR EELENM
EREERAENGRESNTMS - 45
RETH2%RIFTBEE FTH1% i REIRA
RBEER - WHESREFREPANETHK
2% IR EX 1% AT EmE
NE B ERRBERE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EREZ REMER
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&ET FET
Trade receivables EUWE 5 IR 12 78
Other receivables JFE LS Ath BR 3R
Deposits 2e 503 509
Prepayments AT RIE 1,094 2,330
Loan to a third party (Note) RREEF—RE=F2
& (PisE) 720 684
Others Hity 224 126
2,541 3,649
Total trade and other receivables FEUE 5 & H b AR s AR 58 2,553 3,727
Note: The amount of loan to a third party was unsecured, interest free MisE: M—BE=FELHERIEEIR -
and expected to be collected within one year. R ERTEHR —FRUE -
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180 days AEBGFEEMBIEMBATRERS
(2016: 30 to 180 days) for its IT solution business. For trading FNF30HE180H (ZZT—XF:30
of copper, deposits are usually required and the remaining BE180R )2 FHEEH -REFMM
balance is usually receivable approximately within 10 days S BREPRTEAEERS BREAERX
(2016: 10 days) upon completion of the transaction. The Group SRR ENTB(ZE—XRF:+H)A
recognises revenue for natural gas pipeline installation service WH - REBERBTKEERARARE
by reference to the stage of completion and the Group allows ELERBEERANKDS BEXAEBEAHFR
an average credit period of 30 days (2016: 30 days) upon TR®A0R (ZE—R"F:=+H)F

completion. HIEE 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

presented based on the invoice date which approximate the

revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period:

20. EWE S REMEERR (&)

RBEMTERREBERRAY (B
BRAMEE) 272 RKE ZEHE

As at 31 December

R+=RAR=+—-A8
2017 2016
—F-t#F —TRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET
0 - 60 days 12 78

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance

and sales management team would assess the potential

customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.

Limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with

reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and

sales management team considers trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as

continuous repayments have been received.

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

21.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.35% (2016: 0.01% to 0.05%) per annum.

EEMEMHEP A NEEM %K HE
EEEBBeIBERETPZEEREE
R UVEEREPZERER TP ZEER
HE2TRENREEMERETE
Mle-ASEMBRHEETEEKR R
AR RE B W EBUE 5K ST A BT R
NRBEZEREEZEFIGARTEES
FOE% o

RITHEBRRERAE
RITEBBRTSA RIS BENT

0.01%%0.35% ( ZZ—RNF:0.01%%
0.05% ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. EREZRHEMER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—-8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Trade payables JERE SRR 52 284
Payable for construction in progress £ T2 FEHBE R 35,334 19,177
Consideration payable (note 30) FERARAE (MI5E30) - 9,999
Receipt in advance TE U RIB 1,403 591
Other payables and accruals (Note) A EMERRETER
(H3E) 11,980 6,614
48,769 36,665
Note: The amount represented mainly by accrued charges and Mek: ZRBETEEEFERR 2B
temporary short-term advances of RMB8,200,000 (equivalent FoRATRERAREER R ZERE
to HK$9,840,000) (2016: RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to ) B I 5 M3 20 20 A R %68,200,000
HK$2,850,000)) for Yichang Zhongyou's development from 7t (#8 & 729,840,0008 T) (=&
independent third parties which are unsecured, interest-free and — N AR¥2,500,0007T (FHE R
repayable on demand. 2,850,000 70) ) - H AEEKIF &
BRBRERERE-
The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranged HEFRTASERNEEHRN TI0E60
from 30 to 60 (2016: 30 to 60) days. The following is an aged A(ZE—XF:30860H) - FA AR
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date MERTARBEEZABRENNNERN
at the end of the reporting period: B 5 RFRER 9T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2017 2016
—E—t —E—XRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT

1 to 30 days 1-30H 52 284
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23. BANK BORROWINGS

23. IR1ITIEE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Bank borrowings (Note a) |ITEE (Hia) 6,000 17,100
The carrying amounts of the above L ZER—FEENEEN
borrowings repayable (Note b): BREE (Kistb)
Within one year —F R 2,400 17,100
Within a period of more than one year —F A BT BB MR F
but not exceeding two years 3,600 -
6,000 17,100

Note:

(a) The bank borrowings are pledged with several properties owned
by Mr. Xiong and his wife and certain companies held and
controlled by him, and jointly guaranteed by Hubei Biaodian
(as defined in note 37), Mr. Xiong, his wife and the other
independent third party.

(o)  The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in
the respective loan agreements.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowing are as follows:

GEE

RITEERREERARBHAESD
ZEME  UREMSAE REHINET
NEMERRIL BB ILRE (& BME
37) mREL ERBREMBIE=
7 HRER-

ZESRENSER AT
ZEFEH -

AEBESERNERMEMNT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZTE—RF

% %

Variable-rate borrowing FEREEER 8.01 8.48

The Group had variable rate borrowings which carried interest
based on the benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s
Bank of China during the both years.

AEEREIHNEEE RMEFE
A EAPBEARRITEMOEERN K
R
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24. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF 24, EFARTARER —EHBA
THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING FZEERBREREEBELR
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND 15
ITS RELATED PARTIES

Amount due to a shareholder of the Company R ARQTRRRE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8H
2017 2016
—E—+5F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHETT
Non-trade related EE FHEE 25,355 9,093
Non-trade related balances HEZ B
Particulars of the amount due to a shareholder of the Company ERARBIRREIEE HHEHRIEFS
of which are non-trade related are as follows. N
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—8
Name Relationship 2017 2016
#H [£2RE —E—+F —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHETT
Mr. Weng Note
sS4 =g 25,355 9,093
Note: Mr. Weng is the chairman, executive director and a substantial MeX: HEERARARER WTEERE

shareholder under the definition of Listing Rules. ERE(EER LA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF

THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Amount due to a shareholder of the Company (Continued)
Non-trade related balances (Continued)

During the year, Mr. Weng advances HK$17,500,000 (2016:
HK$11,000,000) and RMB716,000 (equivalent to HK$860,000)
(2016: nil) to the Group, and such amount was unsecured,
interest-free and with a maturity period of 2 years. The loan of
HK$11,000,000 advanced by Mr. Weng in the prior year was
originally to be matured in 2018 and was also agreed to be
extended and repayable in 2019 pursuant to the agreement
entered between the Company and Mr. Weng during the year.
The balance is carried at amortised cost using effective interest
method, with an effective interest rate of 10% (2016: 10%).
The proceeds raised during the both years were used for the
Group’s general working purpose.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

24, BERAQAIRER —BHRBER

Al Z FERBRR R EBER K
I8 (#)

FENARRRRARE (&)
FEZHEEE (F)

FA 54 MmN B #517,500,000
B (ZZF — 74 11,000,000/ 7T)
K AR #716,0007T (18 & 7860,0007%
) (ZE—RF:E) BBEERER
W 2B RRMENERH 2L
F—FERHHEF11,000,000/8 TR
THHBA-Z—N\F REAQFHE
BEEFRITUNGZ BEEHE=
T-NFEE - REAATRMEER
BRI  EREMNERBI0E(ZF
—NF10E) -HRBEFEEENME
HEARAEEN—REEBN-

N —FEH B AR 2 FERRR K EH
B 7 R

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHETT
Non-trade related FEHIAM 176,704 142,933
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(if) Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian, a non-
controlling interest of Yichang Zhongyou.

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF 24, BENEAQATRRRR —EHREQ
THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING A2 HERBRRREBELR
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND H (&)

ITS RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Amount due to a shareholder of the Company (Continued) ENARATRRRE (&)
Non-trade related balances (Continued) HEZHEZ (F)
Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEfT — R B A R 2 IF R AR R 2 E
of a subsidiary and its related parties of which are non-trade EBHZIFESBEEFIBFERT -
related are as follows.
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
Name Relationship 2017 2016
#®E B#% —E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
M 5 THExT FHETT
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiary (i) 134,939 118,490
LR R B A A
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities
other than those in (i) (if) 41,765 24,443
AR R H G E S (()F A ERIN)
176,704 142,933
Notes: B3 -
()  Hubei Biaodian is one of the non-controlling interests of Yichang (i) Atz AT ERR 2 IEIERER 2
Zhongyou who has 41% entity interest in Yichang Zhongyou. — HEBEEHR B BRE-

() ARs AW Y SR R - AL
B 58 S 2 SRR A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER OF

24, BERAQAIRER —BHRBER

THE COMPANY AND NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Amount due to a shareholder of the Company (Continued)
Non-trade related balances (Continued)

Prior to 31 December 2016, all advances from non-controlling
shareholders and its related parties were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand, except for RMB65,000,000
(equivalent to HK$78,000,000) advanced from Hubei Biaodian
which carried interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum.

On 31 December 2016, taking into consideration of the
development status of Yichang Zhongyou, Hubei Biaodian
agreed to stop charging the Group interest since then, while
all non-controlling shareholders and its related parties agreed
to fix the loan repayment date to 31 December 2018. These
balances were then carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with an effective interest rate of 10%.

On 31 December 2017, all non-controlling shareholders and
its related parties agreed to further extend the loan repayment
date of all related loan balances to 31 December 2019.
These balances were then carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with an effective interest rate of 10%.

The proceeds raised from non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and related parties during the both years were used
for Yichang Zhongyou’s capital expenditure purpose for the
both years.

Al Z FERBRR R EBER K
8 (#)

FER A DR RRARIE (&)
HEGHEEE (E)

N-ZE—RNFE+-A=+—H51 3
BIRRRHEBEFRBEZMAERRGA
MK 2 B AN ERKEER R
fZH B ) A R %65,000,0007T (HE
$278,000,0007% 7T ) k& Oh - B LA & TE 5
F%12%5T 8 °

R-ZE-RF+-_A=1+—H8 &tk
HERBZERAR HILFAREA
LA L WER AR SR LA B - T T SR AR
BEREFEENBESORESERER
FRRER T NF+_A=1—
B ER/EBRURRAERN R AIZH
AT AR - BRR AR B10E -

N—T—+FE+-_fF=+—8 Ak
RN R EBE R ESE AR
BEXSENEFEEENEEE A =S
—NF+ZA=T—H -ZEHEBIE
FAEBRMNEERBHEKARY R R
FIZE B10E °

KR EFER—EHB AR REBES
FEBRBRREKZAEHRRTIAEESE
ol Z BRI -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZTZ—+F+_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

25, EEFIE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAEE 55,571 54,585

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current year:

HiAmEs:

UATRARAFERANELEHARER

Revaluation of

assets

BEEEM

HK$’000

FH&T

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H -
Acquisition of Yichang Zhongyou (note 30) U= 8 ol (K15E30) 59,100
Credit to profit or loss sFAEZE (1,623)
Exchange difference i Z 8 (2,892)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE-—RF+ZHA=+—H 54,585
Credit to profit or loss FFAE = (1,920)
Exchange difference b 5 =58 2,906
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—tF+-A=+—H 55,571

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$167,160,000 (2016:
HK$137,166,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

These tax losses of HK$152,522,000 (2016: HK$128,382,000)
in HK may be carried forward indefinitely and tax losses in the
PRC of RMB12,632,000 (equivalent to HK$14,638,000) (2016:
RMB8,985,000 (equivalent to HK$8,784,000)) may be carried

forward within 5 years.

RS HTER  AEBERSH ZHE
518 41 4167,160,000/8 7T ( =& — /X
£ : 137,166,000/ 7T ) - A #4K 85 K 2k
i A o B R N BE TEDRI R 2R 20 R B R, -

B RIELETIRAEE -

B E R B IEEE152,522,000/8 7T
(== — /X% :128,382,000/8 7t ) A
ERALE mMPRHEBBEARE
12,632,0007T (18 & 514,638,000/

L) (ZZF—XF: AR¥S8,985,0007T
(1B & 128,784,000/ L) ) Al A AF KN
KhE o
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The unrecognised tax losses which are not recognised as

deferred tax assets will expire in the following years:

25, IERERIIE (#)

ARERDELEVIAEEZ RERH AR
BRRATFER:

As at 31 December
BR+=-—A=+-—H
2016
—E-RF

2018 —E-N\F
2019 —E-NF
2020 —E-FE
2021 B
2022 —E2=-=

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: ETE
16,000,000,000 ordinary 16,000,000,000/% & & A&
shares of HK$0.005 each 0.0057%8 7t 2 & i
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER:
At beginning of year REA)
Share subdivision (Note a) B 7R (Hta)

Issue of ordinary shares (Note b) BITLEMR (D)

At end of year FXR

26. A&

Number of shares Share capital

ROEE LES

2016
—T-RF
HK$'000
TEL

16,000,000 80,000

3,960,000 19,800

1,695,000 8,475

5,655,000 28,275
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26.

27.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to a resolution passed at an extra ordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 9 January 2015, the ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were subdivided into 20
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each.

(o) This represented 1,695,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company at placing price of HK$0.035 per each placed to
independent third parties during the year ended 31 December
2016. All shares in issue rank pari passu in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme:

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and to retain quality personnel and other persons and
to provide them with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. Under the Scheme, the Directors
may grant options to any eligible person of the Group, including
() any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or (ii) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv)
any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined by
the Directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period of up to
ten years from the date of grant of the option as decided by the
board.

26.

27.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

BRA ()
GEE

(@) WERARRE-Z-—HEF—ANR
BITZRRERNAS LBB 2 REAR
ARREFROE T Z BB R20
fi% & i%0.00578 7T B X

b) HEREZEZZ—XF+=-A=+—8H
IEFE - LB R R190.0358 TR AL &
ERE L% = 75 i E1,695,000,000%
MEBER - FTBERTRNENMB AT
HEBREFHAL -

UBRBRERNNRR S
A BB A 0 1 BT

RZE—ZF+—A=+H ARQAEK
M—TEERERE ([FH8]) -5T8l 2
EMTERRANBEEFABREMA
T REUBEREEANEEZEBRE
BEELER -RBREE ESFRAE
E2EMEEBRATRLBRE g5
BIEOARAR HEBRQ A B A T8
ERES - BEKEERM: Sk(i)AAa K
BARINBMBEALTNTAES BB
B AEETEYRNAENEEET:
(AR R KHIEB AR EALTHE
MEF EEXBERNEREENAR:
FVEFTRBBEREEALTEBEREM
CRBHEBEAEBET IR S EE
HEHAEE ¥ EEGFAERMDY
FAATHELRE FERERBAQAZ
B -FRL s BREINESSME
E2HRE (HERERLARAESSES
TF)RITE -
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BHE—T—

27.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of share; (i) the closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business day and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
However, the total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period from time to
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

On 31 December 2017, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Scheme adopted by
the Company on 30 November 2012 is 233,000,000 (2016:
300,000,000) shares of HK$0.005 each in the share capital
of the Company, representing approximately 4.12% (2016:
5.31%) of the issued share capital of the Company. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised. There is no consideration for the
application or acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The
remaining life of the Scheme is approximately five years and to
be expired on 30 November 2022.

+E+=-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

27. LR B ABEBNATRK

(%)
DUREEFENBRESE ()

BB BNz BAREITEE (IRt &
FTRRF LAFAEE ) BO)RMDEE (i) IE R
BELAH(MEREXR) BT
AR BRIz FAR U T E & (i) 2
HEREA AEEERATHIME
BIREXRAHR 2 FRBD FHIRTE -
N=Fz&m& ALE - BRIEFETRL
ZEBREMSRZBRHEE LRSI
BANR R BB E B2 BBITRA
10% o PA T - B TR FT A R 17150 08 IR e
A F 21T 2D B S LR AT ST
AN R)TEFE B ITIRAN 230% ° FE AL
AABIRRREBLUAET  REMI12MEA
HA R8P (A (1] B8 — A3 A IR H BB AR A P
FRZBRDEBTEBBANRBNZKI2
8 A MR %E — B TR D BT E
B21% °

R_ZE—+tF+_A=+—8 REX
RERZE—ZF+—A=+HRMNZ
FEA TEITZARTRMBEAERR
AP AR AR 233,000,0000% ( —Z— /N
300,000,000% ) & x0.005% 7T 2 &
M IERRATEBITRALNI12% (=
T—RNF:531%) - BRIFEERITF]H
O BRI AR R R AT 1T AT A
A& EHM BB S REIEMN
BREGEREB -FIAZHRTHENA
hE - BRZEZ=F+—A=+HE
/ﬁﬁ(’
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

27.
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(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

UERBRERNNRR S
(#)

DREEENBRESR (F)

BREREEMNFROT:

Vesting Exercise Exercise
Date of grant period Exercise period Price dates
R A BEH 765 THE THEAH
2017 21/12/2017 N/A 21/12/2017-21/12/2019 0.1112 N/A
—E—+F e TEA —E—+5+ZA=+—HZ% TER
+ZRA=+—H “Z-AE+ZAZt+—H

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

TEREBEFANREMFARREREDN

4

share options held by employees during the year: =
Outstanding at Granted Exercise Forfeited Expired  Outstanding at
1/1/2017 during year during year during year during year 31/12/2017
RZB-t& RZB-t&
-A-8 +=B=t-8
Option Type BRERE ESig:d ERRH ERTR FRRK ERER ESig:d
2017 4 - 67,000,000 - - - 67,000,000
Exercisable at the end RERTE
of the year 67,000,000
Weighted average MEFHTEE
exercise price - 0.1112 - - - 0.1112

During the year ended 31 December 2017, options were
granted on 21 December 2017. The estimated fair values of the
options granted on that date is HK$2,446,000.

REBE-_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIEF
E-EBRER-_ZE—+tF+=-A=1+—
HERE NZzBRLH 2 BRENGE
NF1{E AE2,446,000% 7T °
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BHE—T—

27.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

27.

+E+=-HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

UERBRERNNRR S
(#)

DRELAENBRESR (F)

ZEATEER - EAMAHE
0§ A BRI T

2017
—E-+tF

Weighted average share price Nt FHRE
Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility 8 HA R 18
Expected life T8 B 4F Hf
Risk-free rate 1 B ) &
Expected dividend yield TE HA U 7

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous 2
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$2,446,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

HK$0.11128 7T
HK$0.1112/8 7T
60.22%

2 years F
1.39%

0%

T8 B35 05 79 45 48 75 2 )4 £ 248 B A
B R IE R o T 2 A E R
REERE LS &G HTTEE
77 5 R 1 1T o TP 2 B A
B

ArEERBE_ZE—+tF+=A=+—
HiEFE AR R E DO ERERR
851 $2,446,0008 L (ZF — < F:
m) -
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28. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 28. FEZRER
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
At beginning of the year RE ) 103,985 -
Non-controlling interests arising on WEKBAREERN
acquisition of a subsidiary IEFER = - 99,340
Share of loss for the year PIEFERNEE (6,773) (5,965)
Exchange difference e+ =58 5,288 (4,694)
Deemed capital contribution arising ~ FEEBRBR R R EREEFREZ
from non-current interest free loan R B ERELEN
from non-controlling shareholders RETHE
and its related parties 10,953 15,304
At end of the year RER 113,453 103,985

The table below shows details of the non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling

interests:

TRINREAERFER R AKE

FE2EWBRAFE:
Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights
held by non-controlling Loss allocated to non- Accumulated non-

interests controlling interest controlling interests
FEREEMERERERR
SR PRTFFERERZER R FERER
Principal place
Name of Subsidiary  of business As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
WEAR AR TEEENY R+=ZB=+-H HE+T-A=+-BLEFE Rt=A=+-H
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-t% “ERE “E-t% NS “E-tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TET
(Note)
()
Yichang Zhongyou The PRC
HEHH e 51% 51% (6,773) (5,965) 113,453 103,985
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28. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 28. FEEERER (&)

Note: B3 -

The Directors concluded that the Group has a sufficiently dominant ESRETREBHERS TBNIREREIE
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of Yichang Zhongyou By SR mmAREE Bt - AEEAZES
and therefore the Group has control over Yichang Zhongyou. Details of BEH o FH B EH MM 5E37 -

assessment are set out in note 37.

Summarised financial information in respect of Yichang EHEEPHUBERZBMEHRAT
Zhongyou is set out below. The summarised financial information XL THBERBEREEREANILAF]
below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. M EAT 2 88 -

Yichang Zhongyou HEEYH

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+5F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FRET
Current assets mENEE 8,741 8,480
Non-current assets EMEEE 498,970 435,177
Current liabilities mE B & 49,380 42,008
Non-current liabilities E S EN=0 235,875 197,759

Equity attributable to owners KNATHEB ANEREE

of the Company 109,003 99,905

Non-controlling interests IR = 113,453 103,985
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28. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Yichang Zhongyou (Continued)

Revenue

Cost of sales
Other income
Expenses
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to owners
of the Company

Loss attributable to the
non-controlling interests

Yz
HE A
HAth A
B3
PRSI %

FAEER
RRBEEARGEER

FFIERE R EIEER

28. FERER &)

BEEHWH (&)

From acquisition
date to

year ended

31 December
2016

ERG A=
HE-_ZT—XRF
+=-—A=+—8
LFEE
HK$’000

FETT

2,658

(2,168)

(13,806)

1,623

(11,693)

(5,728)

(5,965)

(11,693)
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28. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Yichang Zhongyou (Continued)

28. FIERER &)

HE®Hm (&)

From acquisition

Other comprehensive income
(expense) arising from translation
to presentation currency
attributable to
— owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Deemed capital contribution arising
from non-current interest-fee loan

Total comprehensive expense
attributable to owners of
the Company

Total comprehensive expense
attributable to the
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense
attributable for the year

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net cash (outflow) inflow

date to
year ended
31 December
2016
BUERBES
HEZZ—RF
+=Z—A=+—8
IEFE
HK$’000
FAT
LTALTEMBREAZY|EE
FIEAz  Hi2EUA
(Z) -
. VNCIEZ =N (4,511)
—FEIER (4,694)
FREMEPEERA (ZH)
(9,205)
FERN AR B EREE 2 R1E
A E 15,304
RARHEEAEBEEZESZ S
k)
(10,239)
R ESEEEAZ R EE
(10,659)
FREGEEZEX LEHE
(20,898)
[m) FE 128 % 1 25 R 5 A9 AR B
KEEBREERRAFRE 7,758
REEHEERS ML FE (90,966)
REFEHEERSRAFE 83,454
Be (RE)RAFEE 246
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Prior to the disposal of Honest MCO, employees employed
by the Group’s operations in Macau were members of
government-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the Macau government. The Macau operations were
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government was to make the required
contributions under the schemes. The Group did not carry out
any Macau operation upon disposal of Honest MCO.

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, retirement benefits
scheme contributions paid amounted to approximately
HK$88,000 (2016: HK$86,000).

29. R k18 X5t &

R EZFRPIREF A RIRB AT A&
BRI 2 RIS R B IR
U 22 HF 2 BUR & IR R KR A AT 81 2 A
8 R AR A RRKENF 852
NEBHRF B RZENEE AL
B 2R P U B IR 2 SR KRR N ET 81 2
—EBBRRIEBELAE MK A
B E = BURPTREF R X RIS R I &
EITEDRPIET -

REBLZHREBZMEEERREESR
measERES ([8ES]) T8 - .iE
R B2 RIRBARA - A E B IR5%
BeAtERRMEEERZH T ER
BaEANk -

FEMEARZEE ATEBNRLL
BRERERAKBHFEZKE - AEE
AR —EBOLNER TERZERKE
MEBIHF UnEiBNEe A%
BAEBZERKEMNFE ZE-—BERER
EaEt Bl B EHR -

BE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—H01%F
- BT IR FI 5T 8 £ 70 4988,000 &
(ZZ—754%:86,000/87T) °

o X
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30. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU 30. B E 8 7 H

For the year ended 31 December 2016

On 23 April 2015 a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
had entered into a share transfer agreement for the acquisition
of 49% equity interest of the Yichang Zhongyou for a cash
consideration of HK$100,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). With all
the conditions precedent having been fulfiled and obtaining
control, completion of the Acquisition was taken place on 24
February 2016 and accounted for as business combination
using the acquisition method. Yichang Zhongyou became a
49% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company since then.

The business scope of Yichang Zhongyou included investment
in natural gas projects, sales of natural gas, natural gas
cooking appliance and accessories and pipeline installation.
Yichang Zhongyou had been granted the approval of exclusive
right to construct and operate the natural gas project in the
industrial parks and commercial area around Wufeng National
Industrial Zone and Yichang New and High (Technology) District
Baiyang Industrial Zone in Zhijiang City, Hubei Province, the
PRC by Hubei Provincial Development and Reform Commission
(HitEERMNEEZEE) . The Acquisition was to enhance
the development of the Company and the shareholders’ wealth
by exploring different business opportunities in other sectors.

BE-_Z-AF+-A=1+—HLFE

NRZE—RFNA-_+=H AEFE2
BB ARG MG, E R E IR
% L {8100,000,0007 jt K B EH & /i
A9%RHE ([WABET1E]) - BEZFT A R
B ERIESIEHE  WEEE
PR T RNE-A-+MNEZERITFE
U EEARIIEE S Ot B EFH
It A B AN R R B 49 % 18 5 2 8 3
BAR-

HERHNEKRERRRERARE
B #HERAR RAKRRRBAKE
HAREBLZE -EEPHEEHILE
ERMUFZBEROOMU HEE
KN AR B AL A SOT T A g Rk
TXRELREESHERFIXEREZ
TXEREERERAREERARIE
B-RBEESBEAREIMBARNT
REEEEARRNER LIRS KRY

=
= o

=]
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30. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU 30. WIBE E ik (#)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued) BE-Z—ARFE+-A=+—HLEE

Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition on 24 February

(#&)

RWEBB - —R"F_A=-+NHH

2016: BERBE:
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment WE BB R&E 128,641
Prepaid lease payments AR HEENRIE 1,835
Intangible assets B AE 236,400
Inventories EE 106
Deposits paid for non-current assets MIERBEEL TR 4,038
VAT recoverable AT EIEE R 6,413
Bank balances and cash wITHEBRIES 29
377,462
Trade and other payables BB 5 R E MR (15,271)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders JE - FE 12 AR AR BR SRR (86,707)
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEE (59,100)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (21,600)
(182,678)
Net assets acquired BEWEEEFE 194,784

Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date
represented the interests held by non-controlling shareholders
of Yichang Zhongyou and was measured by reference to the

FERERS

proportionate share of recognised amounts of net assets of =

Yichang Zhongyou.

RUEE B IR AR S EES
HE IR AR RS A M WIRE D
EEETHEEREEFESHENLA
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30. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU 30. WEBEE Erhh (&)

(Continued)
Goodwill arising on Acquisition WHEEELENEE
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration RE
— Cash paid during the year ended —-REE_ZT—R"F+_A=+—H81
31 December 2016 FEEMNRS 55,000
— Cash paid during the current year - AFEENRE 9,999
— Deposit paid in 2015 ——E-RFEEE 35,001
100,000
Plus: Non-controlling interests N IR R R 99,340
Less: Recognised amount of the fair value of B BT B (100%) 7T 3% Bl & B FE R
identifiable net assets acquired (100%) BERRATELRE (194,784)
Gooduwill arising on acquisition (Note) INEEEERNEE (i) 4,556
Note: B 5 -
Goodwill arose in the Acquisition because the consideration paid WEEEEAREERREHINNRE
for the combination effectively included the benefit of revenue ERBRERRER - KRRTSEERKES
growth, future market development and the assembled workforce of HNEBAFSEMN G ZSEMaTHFES
Yichang Zhongyou. These benefits were not recognised separately MR BEYIFAUEEREE
from goodwill because they did not meet the recognition criteria for RIZE

identifiable intangible assets.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$5,921,000 had
been excluded from the cost of acquisition and had been
recognised directly as expenses in prior year.

Uy 8% == 78 48 B8 K 45,921,000/ st 2 B
WERAGGR YERLELFEEERE
o
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30. ACQUISITION OF YICHANG ZHONGYOU 30. WEBEE Erhh (&)

(Continued)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEELENESRHEEHR
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration paid in cash during the year ended R#EBZE-_Z—X<"F+_A=+—H1
31 December 2016 FEENBRERE 55,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W BWERES RS EE (29)
54,971
Included in the loss for the last year was HK$11,693,000 T FEBEEAREESTHMNEBELN
attributable to the business of Yichang Zhongyou. Revenue for 11,693,000/ L FFEREBRERE
the last year included HK$2,658,000 generated from Yichang & 7 f & 4 #92,658,0007 7T °
Zhongyou.
31. OPERATING LEASES 31. KEHE
The Group as lessee EEBEARAREA

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FETT
Minimum lease payments paid under FARBKEHEE
operating leases during the year: EN&EEENT: 2,924 3,867
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31. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 31.

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

KelsE #2)
AEEEBRBA (£)

IR IS AR RS - IRIE R A BB AT 4R
E AEE RKSERENRAED
EERS N

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Within one year 1ER 1,129 2,985
In the second to fifth year inclusive FoEESFRN (BIEEEMTE) 44 4,261
1,173 7,246

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the

Group for certain of its office properties. The leases are

negotiated for an average term of 2-3 (2016: 2-3) years.

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

REMENTEARERETHRIYE
R zHEE BOBEFHELE/2ES
F(ZB—RF:2E3%F) -

32. EREIE

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the EIEBEME - BE MR E R
acquisition of property, plant and ARG LBEAEEE
equipment, development of BEARFME
systems and networks
— authorised but not contracted for —ERERRETL 500 500
— contracted but not accounted for —BEIHEERAR 5,193 39,419
5,693 39,919
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BHE-T—

33.

34.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes amount due to a shareholder, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties,
and the bank borrowings disclosed in notes 24 and 23, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained earnings.

The Directors review the capital structure on a bi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the new share issues and

share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

33.

34.

+E+=-HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

EXRERER

EEBEEN UBERAEERNZ
SR BEE T ANEE Ak
D‘ME E=E Effﬁﬂx$2r1§$mﬁﬁ7%
REFMESE @ NEEH 2 ERER
BEFEE—-He

‘mm} +t
FUIQ A

F:"mi‘tﬁ.

AEBERNGEAESFRAR B
B M E24 M 23T 1R BE 2 B < BRR
PR RN — M E AR 2 RE R AR
MEBESTFERRITES KRS
EREEBRURNRFHEE NE R
(BREZBTRAN -HEHERRERMN) -

EXBFMABEHEANERE FREHN
2 EEEEREARANARER
RNER 2 HERR -RIFEE 2 2R
AREBEAGEBEITHRND  BBERD &
BITHE N FEEBELRER-

EEMITA
SRMIANES

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including B3 K pE R
bank balances and cash) (BIERTT ,\\uﬁ%&fﬁﬁ) 8,024 16,412
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost BB 253,500 205,163
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4. @M T H (%)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, amount due to a shareholder of
the Company and amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary and its related parties. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group’s financial
results and its cash flows. Certain trade and other receivables
and bank balances and cash of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group does not engage in any
foreign currency hedging activities. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should
the need arise.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

BHEEREEBRFEREE

AEEZFIECRHTARERKES R
HiER ROTERLBAS BHES
REMER RITEE BANAQFR
RRRIA K e — R T B A R 2 FEE AR
REEBETRBE - ZEeRTAFHB
REBMERE BAZSERTAK
wTZREBREEDSAR (E¥AR - F
Rk EERRERBIERL  RIE
ZERBRZBREN T -EEEERE
MERZERAR ABREER AN
REUE E 51 °

S8 m B

SRR BEAREM T RERER
ERZINEERSEHEE - NEEET
FEWE 5 N EADBRFKOA R RITAERR IR
T AINEFHE - NEE I 8 RAE(AT S
KU Es A EXRBEETUESR
HARMINERE A HREREREE
HHRERZINERR -

RRFZRWBERRFAAIINEFTELZ
EREE SAKBERYIINERR-
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead) 34. @I A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEEERBEK (&)
(Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) EmE R (E)
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency BEERBLUIINEGTE2EREERNRS
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting Eﬁ%%%ZEﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂTi
period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BE af
R+=ZA=1+-AH R+=A=+-H
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF —E—tF Z—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
TAR AT THT AT
HK$ BT 1,102 10,418 24,716 10,106
United States dollar (‘US$”) En([%Ex]) 5,885 3,120 - -
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) B (R - 30 - -
Since the functional currency of the Company has been AR EFERKET SR BERRFH
changed from HK$ to RMB upon completion of the acquisition e EBEBABLET AARE (0K
of Yichang Zhongyou in prior year as stated in note 1, the R  AEEANEEEIZEES
Group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency risk in TTRETINERE (ZT—RF :HBx-
HK$ and US$ (2016: HK$, US$ and MOP). Since the amount ETLREME) AR ZE—RNFT+=
of MOP denominated monetary assets and liabilities are A=+—HBNEFMEFENELEER
insignificant as at 31 December 2016, no sensitivity on its BEMNSBUTER AT EERA

respective foreign currency risk was prepared, accordingly. ZBEINERRESE
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Below is the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% (2016: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against HK$ and US$ (2016: RMB
against HK$ and US$). 10% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 10% (2016: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. Where
RMB strengthen 10% (2016: 5%) against HK$ and US$, the
Group’s post-tax loss will increase by HK$2,518,000 (2016:
HK$143,000). For a 10% (2016: 5%) weakening of RMB
against HK$ and USS$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on post-tax loss.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings (see note 23 for details).The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on interest rates on
bank balances and benchmark interest rate for loan quoted
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
dominated borrowing.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared.

+E+=-HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

4. @M T H (%)

MEEAREEEREREEK (&)

s mbE (E)

LTARASEHAREEBTRET
—RNEARBEBERTRET)
FARTHION (ZE—RF:5%) 2
BRRE-10% (ZZE—RF:5%) )M
FEEIEAB R RN R R
AeBRBRELRE WRREEEHINE
ERAEGEEH 2T E - BREDN
ERREUIINEHE AN EREIE
B - IR R B R ASNES TE R & B)10%
(:%?*/‘TEE%)T’EE)DL%J?%"TH/\
REWBTRETLHEION (ZF
F:5%) ’E‘J$§%l2fﬂf§ﬁ§ﬁﬁﬂwi§ﬁﬂ
2,518,000/ 7t ( = F — /< F : 143,000
BIL) c AR I BT RETTEBEI0%
ZE-RE:5%)ME  BlgHREE
BEXNEEMHARIFE-

FE m kg

SR B Y BARTT A BR NUY BERTT
1ﬁ f”f (§$'IE ffiE23) BRI 2 B & F
o AEENBR RN REREE
%EPE%ETT EAREENEARPEAR
RITRMEEREER X - A BEK
KEAREEMARKHERE -

EERR/AREAEZNERARLTE
R B I AR R EREE DA -
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MEEAREEEREREEK (&)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead) 34. €@ T H (#)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade and
other receivables, the management will only advance credit to
customers or counterparties with good credit history or has
strong financial position. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account of future discounted
cash flows, to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Credit risk is concentrated to a small number of debtors.
However, the management considers, based on the good
credit history and the long term business relationship with the
debtor, there is no significant credit risk.

FEmE

RZZE—+F+A=+—0 £5%£EH
A FREEITETERAEEEEY
BEEmMEAZ 2 &XEERR - T H
FREUBRRERFATENE RS E
EZEEEMES-

RTREEHEREE S REMERRZE
SRk - EREHREREERIFEESR
BAREBUBRARAZEPXHFIHET
EEH- I EREETRREHTHE
Brigs SEMNER MBS R (5T &
RRZBEBEBREIR) - AR AU
BISIEEL R ARERSE S EF
R AREZEERBRD KERD -

HREF T RAEGREBREETREEMR
HFEBRSEEFRNRT WRAPES
ZIEERBER-

EERRBRETRIBEFZA-AM &
BEERRENEBAZRIFEERER
BEBAZERAEGRE NEELE
BEXEERR-
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 4. €M I A #)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. The
Group also manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
financial support from the immediate holding company.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

At 31 December 2017 RZB—tE+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables EREHREMER
Amount due to a shareholder of the Company ~ JERT A2 AR R 5B
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of & —RIHI B2 & 2 HERE R
a subsidiary and its related parties REBEHIE
Bank borrowings BITEE

MEEREEEEREEK (&)

RBELEE

REERDESRAR AEEEEREER
ReTHERRMEREEERREN
ZKF ARAEEZEBREEE R
BNReREPIXE - BEEEEER
THEEZMARERETERRLD A
SETEBERREEEERARNTE
RUBXEREERRDESRAR-

TREIAREZIFTESRHAERT
ZEMBBMHERE ZRDBREAEEA
XNRERERMZERMEBERIERT
ok
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

ber 2017

34. @ T H (%)

Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEEERBEK (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (&)
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average On 1-3 4 months- 12 undiscounted 31 December
interest rate demand months 1 year years cash flows 2016
RZZ-1F
TZA
AR =t+-A
METHH = RE% 1238F 4ERZE1% 1226 ReisE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FHEL TEL FEL TR FEL
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RF+-A=1-H
Trade and other payables ERESREMER - - 36,037 - - 36,087 36,037
Amount due to a shareholder of the Company R AR AIREFHE - - - - 11,000 11,000 9,093
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of & —RIHI B2 & 2 HERE R
a subsidiary and its related parties REBEHIE - - - - 172,901 172,901 142,933
Bank borrowings ROEE 8.48 - - 18,550 - 18,550 17,100
- 36,037 18,550 183,901 238,488 205,163
* For the Group’s interest bearing borrowings, the weighted * RAEBOGEEEMS  WMEHRZ

average interest rate at the end of the reporting period is used
for undiscounted cash flows analysis.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

MEFHFEDARABRERERE

DT

WEBFIE 2 BB RREE
B RIS RE . RS R
AEZETAZSARTLRED-

:\DBEET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows.

The Directors consider the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

No analysis of fair value measurements is presented as the
Group does not have financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value in the consolidated

financial statements.

34. @ T H (%)

AFE

TREENERABBEAFERERR
BenBAREBEAEE -

EERRRBERARE A MHHREKT
FreREERERMBEREERAR
FEMRE-

HRAREL ERIIAERRELRE M
BHRREAFEAEZERTE B
REJRFEFEZDH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities

METBRELEEEZHE

TRAMAGBAEERE TS AEER
B2 BRACKIFREEH &
BEMELAEERASERSRE
MEBRANDBRBREZDMELZRS
MEXARARREREZAB-

Advance
from non-
controlling
Advance from shareholder of
a shareholder a subsidiary
Bank of the and its related Interest
borrowings Company parties payable Total
WEARZHE
ApF  ERBRRERE
ROTEE REZXR BEABR ERHE @t
Note 23 Note 24 Note 24 Note 9
(M5¥23) GE2D) GEZ2) GEDL)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FTEL TR TEL
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—F—H 17,100 9,093 142,933 - 169,126
Financing cash flows BERSRE (11,700) 18,360 31,342 (1,398) 36,604
Non-cash changes: HH2EE):
Foreign exchange translation SNERE 600 1,078 7,480 - 9,158
Finance costs BBRA - 1,930 3,740 - 5,670
Deemed capital contribution arising A2 Al fR &R L — M B A
from non-current interest-free 82 R R &
loan from a shareholder of the HBEnRHEENRL
Company and non-controlling BEREAZRELE
shareholders of a subsidiary and
its related parties - (5,106) (21,336) - (26,442
Interest capitalised in construction EETi2FFAR(L 2 H &
in progress - - 12,545 1,398 13,943
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+ZA=+—AH 6,000 25,355 176,704 - 208,059
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BE-_T—+HF+-_A=+—BILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

(b)

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the period, the Group has the
following significant transactions with related parties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &%}

36. BESHE

(a)

ki B 95 55 A D 9 T
HAAEERMESTIATE
K5

Year ended 31 December

BEZE+-—A=t+—RBLtHEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ET-RE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Finance cost incurred in respect A% 5 & FE 4 19 B 7 Ak R
of loan from a shareholder 1,927 2
Compensation of key management personnel b) XEEBAEZHMH

The Directors and the five highest paid individuals are
identified as key management members of the Group,
their compensation during the year is set out in notes 12
and 13.

EERREERSFATHEAAR
EEZFTBERERE  BENF
NZHME N E12%13 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

37. KRB EEMBLRRAZFHE

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 ARBEWBRAIR-ZE—LFR_F
and 2016 are as follows: —RETZA=T—BZFEFRBET:
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
BBTR
WEARAE B 3L 3t B BRBRE AEEEGRE TEER
2017 2016
SE—tF _—TRF
Bright Able Century Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
R LERAT KBRS 1% REZR
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
T B o5 1ET REZR
DIGITALHONGKONG. COM INC. British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Inactive
KBRS 1% TEEHS
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
B 2B REZR
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
and provision of an
e-commerce platform
YETBARERAR &t 28T REZERERHESTHE
Fa
Global Billion Access Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERREFRAR KBRS AT 100% 100% ®EER
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited
ERRIERRERR AR Ek 187 100% 100% HEZR
Hong Kong King Sailing Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive and not yet
commence in business
BEEEMERAR B 18T 100% 100% WEEBREAREES
King Sailing International Limited British Virgin Islands USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

FRERERAR

RERLHES

(EFH

REER
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HE-_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. A RATEME AR 2H1E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
BRTR
WEARAE A i B HRBRA AEERERE TEEH
2017 2016
“E-t& C—T-RF
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce
platform for design of
garments
0 1,000 1T BRRZAREETHE
Fa
Pickworth Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BED 1ET RAER
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Commodity trading
LEARBRAR B 1B HmE S
Shenzhen Global Billion Access Investment PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Inactive and not yet
Management Company Limited commence in business
RIMIRRERREAEEERAT HE ARE PEEBRHAARED
1,000,0007T
Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited PRC HK$14,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RWERES ORI ERAA HE 14,000,0007% 7 REZR
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEREBRAA B 18T BAER
Man Kong Trading Co. Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
0 1B REER
Great China Inc limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding

EWARAR (Mita) BA AT REER
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. A RAFTEMB AR 215
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
BETR
W EAR AR LR AR L it B HRBRA rEEEERE TEEH
2016
—EREF

Dihang Energy (Shenzhen) PRC HK$10,000,000
Gompany Limited (note a)

- Design and construction
of new energy power
generation equipment,
energy storage
systems and power
equipment, technology
development,
technical services and
technology transfer

Bk ORI ERAR (Mita) e 10,000,000/ 70 Rt RREHEREER
B RRRFRARE
N&ME RIWHE &
R kR MmEB
Charmland Treasure Limited Seychelles Us$1 - Investment holding
(note &) (Hizta) ZER 1T REZK
Hong Kong Charmland Treasure Limited Hong Kong US$10,000 - Investment holding
(note a) (Kista) ) 10,000% 7T REER
Eternal Goal Limited Seychelles USs$1 - Investment holding
(note &) (Hizta) ZER e REZK
Hong Kong Eternal Goal Limited Hong Kong US$10,000 - Investment holding
(note a) (Kista) ) 10,000% 7T REER
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles USs$1 - Investment holding
(note &) (Kizta) ZER e REZK
Hong Kong Heroic Sunshine Limited Hong Kong US$10,000 - Investment holding
(note a) (Kista) ) 10,000% 7T REER
Yichang Zhongyou (note b) PRC RMB30,000,000 49%  Natural gas operations
FEH (fizb) e AR RRRES

30,000,0007T
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. A RAFTEMB AR 215
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
BRTR
WEARAE A i B HRBRA AEERERE TEEH
2017 2016
“E-t& C—T—RF
Honest (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau MOP100,000 - 100% Provision of consulting
Limited (note c) services, data
processing and selling
activities
ZHORMBERERB)BERAA (M) BN 100,000 ] & - 100% fREFEARE  BURAR
REEEY
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at 7 W B F 5 52 45 I S A R Bl 4 2 9]
the end of the both years or at any time during the both years. B SBARMETRREEZE

i%uﬂ
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The subsidiaries were established during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Notes 28 and 30 describes that Yichang Zhongyou is a
subsidiary of the Group even though the Group has only 49%
ownership interest in Yichang Zhongyou.

The Group has held 49% equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou
since 24 February 2016 and #H1LIZHE KR FAR QA (Hubei
Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd.*) (“Hubei Biaodian”) and Mr. Li
Wan Qing (collectively the “Non-controlling Shareholders”), both
were independent third parties to the Group, owned 41% and
10% equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou, respectively.

The Directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), assessed whether or not
the Group has control over Yichang Zhongyou based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Zhongyou unilaterally. In making their judgement, the
Directors considered the Group’s power to affect the Board of
Directors (the “BOD”) of Yichang Zhongyou. The BOD of Yichang
Zhongyou, responsible for all relevant activities of Yichang
Zhongyou, consisted of 6 directors, of which 3 were appointed
by the Group while the other 3 directors were appointed by
the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang
Zhongyou were reached by simple majority. In accordance with
the terms of a further shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and the Non-controlling Shareholders, in any
events where the Group and the Non-controlling Shareholders
have diversed views in the BOD meetings, the Group, as the
single largest shareholder of Yichang Zhongyou, has the power
to make the final decision.

After assessment, the Directors concluded that the Group has
a sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of Yichang Zhongyou and therefore the Group has
control over Yichang Zhongyou.

The subsidiary was disposed of during the year ended 31
December 2017. Details are set out in note 8.

English name is for identification purpose only.
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37. KRB EEMBLRRAZFHE

(#&)

GEE

(@)

ZEMBRARANBE T —tF+=
=t—BIEFEKRIL-

MisE28 R30I E EFR A AL EEK
MEBAR #ALAEEEREESTH
A0%WE B HERE R ©

AEEBE-TE—AF_AZ-THmAR
FAHESPHI0%RAE o T R
RPIREIARBR AR (HBILZF
m)RFEELE(HHEIIFFERRK
R (BAREEZEIE=T) 55
HEH41%K%10% °

EEEhEARANE ([HE])E
BEMOBH T REAKEEEHES
ERENESTEERES R MAERH
BRI AEERTESNES T -1
EHHER EXEERAEHEEE
hHEREE ([ZEFENTED-
HERHZEFGRETE T MM
BFHEEY KERE ZES B4
ZHBAEEEE BI=REZAH
FEEBEBREE - EETHREFER
BEHMEAZHIRE REAEHE
B IEPR AR AR SR AT SL A9 — IR R I
ZIER WMz EEEeE L A&H
BEIFERERETRER  BIAEEE
REEPHNE -—RARRAEEL
RIERE

R EEREAKEEREES LY
MIRREETEETHNEHEE
Btk AN S [ TR E S R o

B RARIRBE=_Z—+tF+=A
=+ HULEFERHE - FBHAWTE
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. A QA B IRk L GEE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

B+=—A=+-—H
2016
—ZE—RF
HK$ 000
FABT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE R & 428
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR ZHER 130,246
130,674
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables JiE U L b BR 3R 2,125
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LA 7,143
9,268
Current liability mEAE
Other payables FERT B A BR X 1,488
Net current (liability) assets mE (BB EEFE 7,780
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEEREBDERE 138,454
Capital and reserves BARRFEE
Share capital % 7x 28,275
Reserves N 101,086
Total Equity attributable to owners of AR #EA AJEGHEZE AT
the Company 129,361
Non-current liability EREBAE
Amount due to a shareholder of B AR A REZIE
the Company 9,093

138,454
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. "X R B MR RKREHE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuead) (#&)
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the year are as RKRBRAFEZFEEBSOT
follows:
Capital Special Share Other  Translation Share options Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERGE KHIRE R EE AR BERE BRERE ZiHER @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000
TR TERL TR TERL TiER TER TiEL TR

At 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E-f-H 7,640 1,971 172,652 - - - (115,276) 66,987
Loss and total comprehensive expense TEEEERZETHAR

for the year - - - - - - (18,660) (18,660)
Issue of ordinary shares BITLAR - - 50,850 - - - - 50,850
Deemed capital contribution arising ARARERUEEDHLE

from non-current interest-free loan ERELCRERE

from a shareholder of the Gompany - - - 1,909 - - - 1,909
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+-A=1-H 7,640 1,97 223,502 1,909 - - (133,936) 101,086
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - - (19,548) (19,548)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AFEE2EMA - - - - 6,574 - - 6,574
Recognition of share-based payment B RD AEROA R - - - - - 2,446 - 2,446
Deemed capital contribution arising RRARERGEFNALE

from non-current interest-free loan BRMEECRIELE

from a shareholder of the Company - - - 4,825 - - - 4,825

At 31 December 2017 RZB—+E+2A=+-H 7,640 1,971 223,502 6,734 6,574 2,446 (153,484) 96,383
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2017:

(i)

(i

(i)

On 6 October 2017, ®wMAEER OFY) B R A A
(Dihang Energy (Shenzhen) Company Limited*) (“Dihang
Energy”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”) with F/8Z& BB E 5 BB A7) (Shanghai
Sheguan International Trading Company Limited*), a
related company which was owned as to 61% by and
controlled by Mr. Weng Lin Lei, an executive director and
the chairman of the Company, and ;&I Z D/ =
8E)R AR A 8] (Shenzhen Energynt Co. Ltd.) (“Shenzhen
Energynt”), pursuant to which Dihang Energy agreed to
acquire the entire equity interests of Shenzhen Energynt
at a nominal consideration of RMB1. The acquisition of
Shenzhen Energynt and its subsidiaries by the Group
would enable the Group to explore further business
opportunities in solar energy industry.

The acquisition has been subsequently completed on 3
January 2018. The Group determines that the financial
impact of this acquisition would not be significant to the
Group.

On 18 January 2018, the Board of Directors announced
to grant share options to certain individuals to subscribe
for a total of 62,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.005
each, subject to acceptance by the individual.

5,000,000 shares, of which the share option was granted
on 21 December 2017, was subsequently exercised on
13 February 2018 at the price of HK$0.1112, resulting in
an increase in the total number of ordinary shares issued
from 5,655,000,000 to 5,660,000,000 shares as at 13
February 2018.

English name is for identification purpose only.
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BEHRER

MTEAERR-FE—+F+ =5
St—BHEL:

(i)

(i

(i)

RZF—tFt+ANE  ARQEME
E2AWMB QAT MR ORI
ERAFELBECEERES A
RAR (—HBARBRITEER
TRPRELLEHEA RIZH61%
BEWENR) LRI LR
DA RAR DA ([RIIZ R
RERF ) RIS i g ol ([ o 1%
) B TRERREAGE
REARB1ITWE R RS
i) 2 BRRAE o AR B W IRYI %5
B R EME A RS ANEE TR
ENUER TS E VY Pl

WREERERN T N\F—A
ASER > REER R NRKE
MBEEHAEEMSLTE

> ZF

Q

%

—T-NF—A+/\B EFE
T AE T EAR D ERE X
R A 62,000,000 & % @ &
0.005% 7T #) & 38 A% - 1B AR E A
BWE HEE -
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2 B % 4 T T #95,000,0008% B% 17
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—NE-A+=BHETE BN
ZE-NFZA+ =B BE1
I 38 A% 48 Bt B 5,655,000,0003E =
5,660,000,000 °
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(iv)

Shenzhen Energynt entered into two non-legally binding
pre-acquisition agreements with several independent
third parties on 6 February 2018 and 13 February 2018
respectively, pursuant to which Shenzhen Energynt
will acquire 100% of the equity interests in certain
target companies from the independent third parties,
so as to enable the Group to explore further business
opportunities in solar energy industry.

These potential acquisitions up to the date of this report
were still incomplete and were still under feasibility
assessment by the Group.

For further details of the proposed acquisition, please
refer to the announcements published by the Group on
the website of the Stock Exchange on 6 February and 13
February 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 4 #

39. EHEEE (&)

(iv)

A EE RS R IE=R
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+-HLEE

Year ended 30 June
BEANAZTHILLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2014 2013
“E2—+t& —TRF —T-hF —T-NFE —ZT-NF —T-=F
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER FET FET FET FTiET FTET
RESULTS E
Revenue Wz 50,385 36,379 217,068 25,865 3,792 3,066
Cost of sales HEMKR (47,701)  (35,341)  (216,775)  (24,887) - -
Gross profit e 2,684 1,038 293 978 3,792 3,066
Other income =t L ON 315 38 105 26 42 1
Other gains and losses HihasRER 707 (374) - - - -
Selling and distribution cost SHE R o SRR (13,165)  (13,068) (2,881) (92) (210) (228)
General and administrative —BRITH
expenses and depreciation YHRITE (26,788)  (28,369) (78,972) (11,483) (5,679) (5,501)
Finance cost IR (5,670) (39) - - - -
Loss before taxation BRiaER (41,917) (40,774) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662)
Income tax credit FrsHif e 1,919 1,585 - - - -
Loss for the year/period F/HNER (39,998)  (39,189)  (81,455)  (10,571) (2,055) (2,662)
Loss for the year attributable to: A N A TEEEREE:
Owners of the Company N/NIEZEDN (33,225)  (33,224) (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662)
Non-controlling interest FER R (6,773) (5,965) - - - -
Loss for the year/period £/ BNEE (39,998)  (39,189)  (81,455)  (10,571) (2,055) (2,662)
At 31 December At 30 June
R+=A=+-8 RAA=1H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2014 2013
2t —T—5F —T-hF —E-NF —Z-QNF —T-=F
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER FET FET FET FEL FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 516,382 457,038 57,275 3,446 - -
Current assets REEE 17,124 25,695 26,486 34,758 4,717 6,717
Current liabilities TEaE (51,169)  (53,765) (3,244) (1,083) (1,105) (1,050)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (261,230)  (206,611) - - = -
TOTAL EQUITY oyt 221,107 222,357 80,517 37,141 3,612 5,667
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